Linda Lucas Auditor

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

November 30, 1988

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page <u>Number</u>
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement 1 - Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups	2
2 - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - All Governmental	.
Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds 3 - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and	6
Actual - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund 4 - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings - Proprietary	7
Fund Type 5 - Combined Statement of Changes in Financial	10
Position - Proprietary Fund Type	11
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies	12
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements	17

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page <u>Number</u>
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION	
General Fund	
Comparative Balance Sheet	35
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes	
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	36
Statement of Expenditures Compared to Budget	37
Special Revenue Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet	43
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balances Individual Fund Statements	47
	51 - 86
Comparative Balance Sheets Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Debt Service Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet	87
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and	07
Changes in Fund Balance	88
Individual Fund Statements	89 - 92
Comparative Balance Sheets	. , , , ,
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Capital Projects Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet	22
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and	93
Changes in Fund Balance	94
Individual Fund Statements	95 - 98
Comparative Balance Sheets	90 - 9 0
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Enterprise Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet	99
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balance	100
Combining Statement of Changes in Financial Position	101
Individual Fund Statements	102 - 107
Comparative Balance Sheets	
Statements of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Comparative Statements of Changes in Financial Position	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page <u>Number</u>
Fiduciary Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet	108
Expendable Trust Funds -	
Combining Balance Sheet	109
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balance	111
Individual Fund Statements	113 - 136
Comparative Balance Sheets	
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes	
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Agency Funds - Combining Balance Sheet	137
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities	140
County Collector - Assessed Valuation and Tax Extensions	146
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance	1/7
Senedule Of Federal Financial Assistance	147
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS	149
THE PERSON AND AND ADDRESS OF THE PERSON AND	147
COMBINED REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS (ACCOUNTING AND ADMINISTRATIVE)	150



Vermilion County Board Vermilion County, Illinois

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Vermilion County, Illinois, as of November 30, 1988 and for the year ended, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in the <u>Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations</u>, <u>Programs</u>, <u>Activities and Functions</u>, issued by the U.S. General Accounting Office. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The County has not maintained historical cost data on general fixed assets and the general fixed asset group of accounts are, therefore, not presented in the financial statements as required by generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, except for the omission of the account group described above, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Vermilion County, Illinois, as of November 30, 1988 and the results of its operations, and the changes in financial position of its proprietary fund type, for the year then ended, all in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplemental information, including the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is presented fairly, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

Danville, Illinois May 12, 1989 Clifton, Leenderson & Co.

MEMBERS OF NR INTERNATIONAL

MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

A Worldwide Association of Independent Accounting Firms

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES

	COMBI	COMBINED BALANCE SHEET	SHEET - ALL	FUND TYPES	
		November 1	er 30, 1988		
		20 V G G C G C G C G C G C G C G C G C G C	Fund Tybes	Ĭ.	Proprietary
		Special	1	Capital	Type
Assets	General	Revenue	Service	Projects	Enterprise
Cash	\$ 249,199	\$1,585,580	\$ 13,637	\$ 240,809	\$ 935,022
Investments	1,749,531	2,796,636	1,089,076	1,001,739	211,000
Receivables (net,				•	•
where applicable					
of allowance for					
uncollectibles):	-				
Taxes, including					
interest, penalties					
and liens (Note 1)	316,006	628,592	61,825	16,234	•
Accounts	•	545,021	•	•	263,913
Accrued interest	12,159	658'67	4,545	14,001	643
Due from other funds					
(Note 2)	697,887	54,190	•		•
Due from other					
governments	543,246	255,852			•
Inventory, at cost	2,134	•	1	t	•
Prepaid expense	•	1,757,617	ı	•	ŧ
Fixed assets (net					
of accumulated					
depreciation (Note 3)	•	•	•	1	3,314,607
Amount available in					
debt service funds	•		•		•
Amount to be provided					
for retirement of					
general tong-term					
debt (Notes 4 and 6)	•		1		-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

	COMBINED	BALANCE	SHEET - ALL FUND	2 4 4 7 1 0	
		AND ACC	GROUPS	! ,	
		November	er 30, 1988		
	Fiduciary	Account			
	Fund	Group			
	Type	General	Total	1	
	Trust and	Long-term	(Memorandum	m Only)	
Assets	Agency	Debt	1988	1987	
Cash	\$4,978,497	·	\$ 8,002,744	\$ 7,381,413	
Investments, at cost	1,548,527	•	8,396,509	7,091,966	
Receivables (net,				•	
where applicable,					
of allowance for					
uncollectibles):					
Taxes, including					
interest, penalties	-				
and liens (Note 1)	906,208	•	1,928,865	2,118,133	
Accounts	302,096	•	1,111,030	727,388	
Accrued interest	13,562	•	672,76	65,596	
Due from other funds			•	•	
(Note 2)	765,716	•	1,517,793	1,113,900	
Due from other			•	•	
governments	83,285	•	882,383	903,556	
Inventory, at cost	11,025		13,159	14,505	
Prepaid expense	ı	•	1,757,617	1,673,925	
Fixed assets (net					
of accumulated					
depreciation (Note 3)			3,314,607	3,364,165	
Amount available in				•	
debt service funds	•	1,169,083	1,169,083	1,222,327	
Amount to be provided					
for retirement of					
general long-term					
debt (Notes 4 and 6)		3,702,609	3,702,609	3,919,705	

-continued-

\$4,871,692 \$31,891,148

\$8,608,916

Total assets

	TYPES		
SION	FUND		
1111	- ALL	GROUPS	
COUNTY	SHEET	COUNT	•
MILION	BALANCE	AND AC	
V E R	COMBINED		

	W 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	COMBINED	BALANCE SHEET	SHEET - ALL	. FUND TYPES	
			November 30	nu Accouni Groups November 30, 1988		
						Proprietary
			Governmer	Governmental Fund Ty	Types	Fund
			Special	Debt	Capital	Type
Liabilities	General		Revenue	Service	Projects	Enterprise
Vouchers and accounts						
payable	\$ 162,874	49	168,159	•	\$ 11,798	\$ 75,341
Accrued expenses	130,747	~	93,392	•		240,427
Due to:						
Other taxing units			1	,		•
Other funds (Note 2)	139,609	0.	218,277	•	•	•
Other governments	•		1,477	٠		E
Others	18,725	10			•	
Deferred revenue	•		507,066	•	•	•
Accumulated unpaid sick pay						
(Note 7)	r		,	•	•	
Loan agreement - Sheriff's cars						
(Note 4)	•		1	•	•	•
Courthouse renovation lease						
(Notes 4 and 6)	•		,	•		•
General obligation bonds						
payable (Note 4)	•			,	1	,
Total liabilities	451,955	ا	988,371		11,798	315.768
Fund Equity						
Contributed capital	•		4	•	•	4,524,518
Accumulated deficit unreserved	•					(115,101)
Fund balance:						-
Reserved for trust activity					•	•
Reserved for inventory	2,134		,	,	•	
Reserved for debt service			•	1,169,083	,	•
Unreserved	3,116,073		6,684,956		1,260,985	•
Total accumulated deficit/						
fund balance	3,118,207		6,684,956	1,169,083	1,260,985	(115,101)
Total fund equity	3,118,207	'	6,684,956	1,169,083	1,260,985	4,409,417
Commitments and contingent						
liabilities (Notes 5 and 12)						
Total liabilities and						
fund equity	\$3,570,162		673,327	\$7,673,327 \$1,169,083	\$1,272,783	\$4.725.185

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

		:			
	November	ser 30, 1988			
	Fiduciary	Account			
	Fund	Group			
	Type	General	Tota	- e	
	Trust and	Long-term	(Memorandum	um Only)	
Liabilities	Agency	Debt	1988		
Vouchers and accounts			!		
payable	\$ 8,854		\$ 427,026	\$ 551.150	
Accrued expenses	157,567	•	622,133	426.832	
Due to:	•				
Other taxing units	3,703,736	•	3.703.736	3.528.100	
Other funds (Note 2)	1,159,907	•	1,517,793	1.113.900	
Other governments	11,543		13,020	020 72	
Others	2 101 788		V = 7 C C C		
Deferred revenue			616,212,2		
ted money of the	•	•	990',000	435,037	
	•	132,047	132,047	147,686	
Loan agreement - Sheriff's cars			•	•	
(Note 4)	•	108.012	108.012	972 69	
Courthouse renovation lease (Notes 4 and 6)	•	3.931.633	3.031.633	000 050 7	
		-			
payable (Note 4)	•	700.000	700.000	875 000	
Total liabilities	7.235.395	4 871 602	13 874 070	17 062 503	
Fund_Equity				2	
Contributed capital	•	•	4.524.518	4.524.518	
Accumulated deficit unreserved			115	290 72	
Fund balance:					
Reserved for trust activity	1,373,521	•	1.373.521	961.150	
Reserved for inventory		•	2.134	14 505	
Reserved for debt service	•		1 169 083	1 222 327	
Unreserved	•	,	11.062.014	025 570 0	
Total accumulated deficit/					
fund balance	1,373,521	•	13,491,651	12,008,558	
Total fund equity	1,373,521	•	18,016,169	533,07	
Commitments and contingent					

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, and notes to financial statements.

\$31,891,148 \$29,596,579

\$8,608,916 \$4,871,692

liabilities (Notes 5 and 12)

Total liabilities and

fund equity

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - ALL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
Year Ended November 30, 1988

					> L d : C = D : B		
	9	overnmental	Fund Type		Fund Type	Total	<u></u>
			Debt	Capital	Expendable	(Memorandum	(^) LO
Revenues	General	Revenue	Service	Projects	Trust	1988	
Taxes	\$2,391,479	\$3,081,702	\$ 116,534	\$ 233,037	\$ 78,520	\$ 5,901,272 \$	'n
Licenses and permits	27,035	93,396	•	*	1		
Intergovernmental	1,458,970	3,502,714	505,400		1,425,535	6,892,619	6,318,076
Charges for services	885,419	185,322	•	•	188,312	1,259,053	1,561,303
Fines and forfeits	205,273	•	•	•	1	205,273	230,439
Miscellaneous	222,554	889,635	69,215	54,311	94,358	1,330,073	1,122,045
Total revenues	5,190,730	7,752,769	691,149	287,348	1,786,725	15,708,721	14,875,117
Expenditures							
General government	1,872,202	509,775	•	•	,	2,381,977	2,435,341
Judiciary and court						•	•
related	1,491,974			•		1,491,974	1,561,952
Public Safety	974,741	84,119	•			1,058,860	1,093,352
Corrections		2,568,054	•	•	,	2,568,054	2,411,483
Health and welfare	8,203	1,702,021	•	•	•	1,710,224	1,719,780
Transportation	•	1,407,069	•	•	1,145,792	2,552,861	1,999,767
Debt service	•		1,169,393	•		1,169,393	497,583
Capital projects	•		•	110,937	,	110,937	631,981
Other	136,377	1,088,020	•	•	242,054	1,466,451	1,120,234
Total expenditures	4,483,497	7,359,058	1,169,393	110,937	1,387,846	14,510,731	13,471,473
Excess (deficiency)		S				! !	
over expenditures	707,233	393,711	(478,244)	176,411	398,879	1,197,990	1,403,644
Other financing source	es (nses)			·			
Operating transfers in	n 73,243	200,000	425,000	355,869	21,818	1,075,930	1,299,855
Operating transfers out (589	ut (589,990)	(200,002)		1	(20,697)	\sim	(1,188,300)
Total other financing	ing						
sonles (nses)	(516,747)	(2)	425,000	355,869	1,121	265,241	111,555
Excess (deficiency) of revenue) of revenue	s					
and other sources over expenditures	over expend	itures					
and other uses	190,486	393,709	(53,244)	532,280	400,000	1,463,231	1,515,199
Fund balance at							
beginning of year	2,927,721	6,291,247	1,222,327	728,705	973,521	12,143,521	10,627,887
Increase in reserve							
for inventory	ı.	1	-	•	4	•	435
Fund balance at end							
of year	\$3,118,207	\$6,684,956	\$1,169,083	\$1,260,985	\$1,373,521	\$13,606,752 \$	\$12,143,521

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, and notes to financial statements.

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

	TO LOS TO	- 1 2 : 5 :	KI VENUES, F	_	AND	
•	N 1	2 2			:	
		٠ ،	DEC LIPES AND EXPER Fooded November 40	EXPENDABLE INUST	FUNDS	
	-1 0		1		Revenue Fund	Types (Note 10)
			Variance	1		
			Favorable			Favorable
Revenues	Budget	Actual ((Unfavorable	Budget	Actual	(Unfavorable)
Taxes	\$2,243,095	\$2,391,479	\$148,384	\$ 3,141,650	\$3,081,702	\$ (59,948)
Licenses and permits	25,000	27,035	2,035	85,210	93,396	8,186
Intergovernmental	1,182,928	1,458,970	276,042	3,648,413	3,483,509	(164,904)
Charges for services	802,500	885,419	82,919	160,000		25,322
Fines and forfeits	210,000	205,273	(4,727)	•		
Miscellaneous	266,600	222,554	(44,046)	672,985	798,953	125,968
Total revenues	4,730,123	5,190,730	460,607	7,708,258		• •
Expenditures						
General government	1,910,062	1,872,202	37,860	511,671	509,775	1.896
Judiciary and court related	1,521,072	1,491,974	29,098	•	. 1	. 1
Public Safety	983,649	974,741	8,908	84,705	84,119	586
Corrections			,	2,691,591	2,568,054	123,537
Health and welfare	8,602	8,203	399	1,788,365	1,702,021	86,344
Transportation	•	•	,	2,755,504	1,244,336	1,511,168
Debt service	•	•	•	•		•
Other	221,602	136,377	85,225	1,203,557	1,068,634	134,923
Total expenditures	4,644,987	4,483,497	161,490	9,035,393	7,176,939	4.5
Excess (deficiency) of revenues						
over expenditures	85,136	707,233	622,097	(1,327,135)	465,943	1,793,078
Other financing sources (uses)						
Operating transfers in	•	73,243	73,243	•	200,000	200,000
Operating transfers out	(661,500)	(589,990)	71,510	•	(200,002)	J
Total other financing sources						
(nses)	(661,500)	(516,747)	144,753		(2)	(2)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues						
over expenditures and other						
sources	\$ (576,364)	190,486	\$766,850	\$(1,327,135)	465,941	\$1,793,076
Fund balance at beginning of year		2,927,721			6,157,946	
מסיפורה מי		\$3,110,CUr			\$6,625,887	

	VERMILION C			
COMBINED & CHANGES CHANGES	STATEMENT OF ES IN FUND BAL	OF REVENUES, EXP BALANCE - BUDGET	ENDITURES, And actual	X
ALL GOVERNMENTAL	FUND	2	ABLE TRUST	FUNDS
	Year Ended N	ember 30.	1988	
	Debt	Service	Fund	
			Variance	
			Favorable	
Revenues	Budget	Actual	(Unfavorable)	
	\$ 118,750	\$ 116,534	\$ (2,216)	
Licenses and permits	•	ŧ		
Intergovernmental	493,400	505,400	12,000	
Charges for services	•	•	•	
Fines and forfeits	•	•		
Miscellaneous	32,500	69,215	36,715	
Total revenues	644,650	691,149	667,97	
Expenditures				
General government	•	•		
Judiciary and court related	•	•		
Public Safety		•		
Corrections	•			
Health and welfare	•	•		
Transportation	•	•		
Debt service	1,169,413	1,169,393	2.0	
Other		•	1	
Total expenditures	1,169,413	1,169,393	2.0	
Excess (deficiency) of revenues				
over expenditures	(524,763)	(478,244)	46,519	
Other financing sources (uses)				
Operating transfers in	200,000	425,000	(12,000)	
Operating transfers out	•	•	ŧ	
Total other financing sources (uses)	500,000	425,000	(75,000)	
Excess (deficiency) of revenues				
over expenditures and other sources	\$ (24,763)	(53,244)	\$(28,481)	
balance at begi		1,222,327		
Fund balance at end of year		\$1,169,083		

-continued-

		VERMILION C	COUNTY, ILLINOIS	S10		
	COMBINED	TATEMENT	NUES,	NDITURES,	AND	
	CHANGES	IN FUND	BALANCE - BUDGET	I AND ACTUAL		
	ALL GOVERNMENTAL	-	TYPES AND EXPENDABLE	ABLE TRUST	FUNDS	
		Year Ended N	Ended November 30, 1	1988		
	S	Capital Projec	ects Fund	Expendable	Expendable Trust Funds	Is (Note 10)
			Variance			Variance
			favorable			Favorable
Revenues	Budget	Actual ((Unfavorable)	Budget	Actual	(Unfavorable)
Taxes	\$ 237,500	\$ 233,037	\$ (4,463)	· · ·		· +
Licenses and permits	•	•	٠.	•		
Intergovernmental	•			176,000	181,142	5.142
Charges for services	•	•	•	. 1		1
Fines and forfeits	•	•	•	,		
Miscellaneous	18,000	54,311	36,311	4.850	15.368	10.518
Total revenues	255,500	287,348	31,848	180,850	196,510	15,660
Expenditures						
General government	ŧ	•	•	•	,	
Judiciary and court related	,		•	•	1	r
Public Safety	•		•			
Corrections	•		•	٠	,	,
Health and welfare		•	•	·		•
Transportation	•	*		,	•	,
Debt service		,		•	•	•
Capital projects	2,757,700	110,937	2,646,763	•	•	•
Other		•	•	260,500	109,270	151,230
Total expenditures	2,757,700	110,937	2,646,763	260,500	109,270	
Excess (deficiency) of revenue	S					
over expenditures	(2,502,200)	176,411	2,678,611	(79,650)	87,240	166,890
Other financing sources (uses)						
Operating transfers in	161,500	355,869	194,369	,	•	•
Operating transfers out		•	•	•	•	•
Total other financing sources						
(nses)	161,500	355,869	194,369	•	,	,
Excess (deficiency) of revenues	e S					
over expenditures and other						
sources	\$(2,340,700)	532,280	\$2,872,980	\$(79,650)	87,240	\$166,890
balance at					302,760	
fund balance at end of year		\$1,260,985			\$390,000	

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, and notes to financial statements.

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE Year Ended November 30, 1988

		(Memorandum Only) <u>1987</u>
Revenues		
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$3,462,837 140,239	\$3,354,546 73,459
Total revenues	3,603,076	3,428,005
Operating expenses		
Personal services Supplies Contractual services Other services and charges Heat, light and power Depreciation Total operating expenses Operating income	2,399,334 147,208 543,679 153,971 152,420 165,602 3,562,214 40,862	2,213,793 109,848 373,680 161,209 148,942 162,732 3,170,204 257,801
Nonoperating expenses		
Operating transfers out	(21,000)	(20,000)
Net income	19,862	237,801
Accumulated deficit at beginning of year	(134,963)	(372,764)
Accumulated deficit at end of year	\$ (115,101)	<u>\$ (134,963</u>)

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, and notes to financial statements.

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE Year Ended November 30, 1988

		(Memorandum Only) <u>1987</u>
Funds were provided by		
Net income from operations Less charges to operations not affecting funds:	\$ 40,862	\$257,801
Depreciation	165,602 206,464	162,732 420,533
Decrease in working capital	2,861	9,297
Total funds provided	\$209,325	\$429,830
Funds were applied to		
Nonoperating expense Additions to building Purchase of equipment	\$ 21,000 45,771 70,273	\$ 20,000 - 53,547
Increase in working capital	72,281	<u>356,283</u>
Total funds applied	\$209,325	<u>\$429,830</u>
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITA	AL	
Increase (decrease) in current assets		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables – accounts and interest Due from other funds	\$110,665 96,493 310 (1,483)	\$240,016 (21,674) 100,721 1,483
Net increase in current assets	205,985	320,546
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities		
Vouchers payable Accrued payroll Due to other funds	28,314 115,316 (7,065)	(36,825) 15,602 (5,217)
Net increase (decrease) in current liabilities	136,565	(26,440)
Increase in working capital	\$ 69,420	\$346,986

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, and notes to financial statements.

The accounting policies of Vermilion County conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. Principals Used to Determine the Scope of the Reporting Entity

The County's reporting entity includes the County's governing board and all related organizations for which the County exercises oversight responsibility.

The County has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities which benefit the citizens of the County, should be included within its financial reporting entity. The criteria include but are not limited to, whether the County exercises oversight responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters), scope of public service, and special financing relationships.

The Danville Public Building Commission has been determined not to be part of the reporting entity after applying the manifesting of oversight, scope of public service and special financing relationships criteria and are therefore excluded from the accompanying financial statements because the County does not control the assets, operations or management of the Danville Public Building Commission. In addition, the County is not aware of any entity which would exercise such oversight as to result in the County's being considered a component unit of the entity.

B. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into six generic fund types and three broad fund categories as follows:

B. Fund Accounting (continued)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The General Fund (which includes the fee offices) is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Project Funds - Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and Trust Funds).

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds - Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. These include Expendable Trust and Agency Funds. Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS (continued)

Total Columns on Combined Statements - Overview

Total Columns on the Combined Statements - Overview are captioned Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

C. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the government's financial position and operations. However, comparative data have not been presented in all statements because their inclusion would make certain statements unduly complex and difficult to understand.

D. Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the long-term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. Governmental funds and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for on a spending or "financial flow" measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable resources." Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

The County has not maintained accurate historical records for the purpose of recording costs of capital assets acquired over the years. These costs have been regular expenditures of the various funds at the time the expenditure is incurred. This lack of historical data makes it impractical to accurately present the capital assets owned by the County.

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, not in the governmental funds.

An account group is not a "fund." It is concerned only with the measurement of financial position. It is not involved with measurement of results of operations.

D. Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. They are instead reported as liabilities in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

The proprietary fund is accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with its activity are included on the balance sheet.

Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by the proprietary fund is charged as an expense against its operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the balance sheet. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Building and equipment are recorded at cost and the farm land is carried at a nominal amount of \$1,000 for 137 acres, the approximate cost based on market value at the date of acquisition.

E. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.

Accounting records and reports made by County officials are on the cash basis. Under this method, revenue is recorded when collected and expenditures are recorded when disbursements are made. However, the Illinois County Auditing Law requires audit reports to contain statements that are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, setting forth financial position and the results of operations. For purposes of these financial statements, the accounting for all the funds has been converted to the modified accrual basis or accrual basis, as required by generally accepted accounting principles.

All governmental funds and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. Taxpayer-assessed income, gross receipts, and sales taxes are considered "measurable" when in the hands of intermediary collecting governments and are recognized as revenue at that time. Anticipated refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and their validity seems certain.

E. Basis of Accounting (continued)

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred.

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

F. Budget and Appropriations

The County adopts an annual budget and appropriation ordinance in accordance with Chapter 34 of the Illinois Revised Statutes. The budget covers the fiscal year ending November 30 and is available for public inspection at least fifteen days prior to final adoption. All appropriations cease with the close of the fiscal year. The budget document is prepared for all budgetary funds using the accrual basis for projecting expenditures and the cash basis for projecting revenues. Actual revenue compared to budget in the financial statements is presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles since the difference from cash basis is deemed to be immaterial.

Once the County budget has been adopted no further appropriations shall be made during the year except in the event of an immediate emergency at which time the County Board by a two-thirds vote makes appropriations in excess of those authorized in the budget.

G. Investments

Cash from certain County funds is invested in time deposits. Time deposits are carried at cost.

H. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable in the Governmental and Proprietary Funds are reported at gross with no allowance for uncollectibles since the amount of any uncollectible account is immaterial. The delinquent taxes receivable in the Fiduciary Funds are reported net of an estimated allowance. The allowance for uncollectibles is adjusted annually and is based on historical experience with the property tax collection process.

I. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost. Inventory in the General and Agency Funds consists of stamps and expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual items are purchased. Reported inventory in the General Fund is equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though they are a component of net current assets.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.



Note 1 - Property taxes

Property taxes receivable represent unpaid taxes from 1987 and prior year levies. Property taxes are levied on the second Tuesday of October and payable in two installments on the following June 1 and September 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on January 1.

Note 2 - <u>Interfund accounts</u>

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at November 30, 1988 were:

	Interfund	Interfund
<u>Fund</u>	<u>Receivable</u>	<u>Payable</u>
General Fund	\$ 697,887	\$ 139,609
Special revenue:		
Health Department	-	18,806
Highway administrative payroll	31,870	-
Indemnity	22,320	_
IMRF	-	32,676
FICA	-	22,909
Public Safety Building Rent	-	110,743
Victim Witness - services	-	5,143
Seat Belt Grant	-	25,000
Victim Witness - Attorney General	-	3,000
Fiduciary funds:		•
Township MFT	_	31,869
Law Library	792	-
Working cash	-	3,580
Court support	4,175	· -
Courthouse automation	3,676	-
Courthouse security	3,773	•
Recorder's special fee	2,226	1,361
Payroll	55,585	250,000
Inheritance tax	- -	191
Treasurer's account	4,602	28
Periodic imprisonment	-	329
County Clerk	4,556	-
Circuit Clerk	=	31,982
County Collector	42,243	775,606
Deposit fund	642,092	42,243
Unknown heirs	, =	17,985
Non-resident heirs	1,996	1,032
Probation office	<u> </u>	3,701
Total	\$1,517,793	\$1,517,793

⁻continued-

Note 3 - Enterprise Fund fixed assets A summary of changes in fixed assets of the County Enterprise Fund is presented below:

	Balance November 30, <u>1987</u>	Additions	<u>Retirements</u>	Balance November 30, 1988
Land	\$ 1,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,000
Buildings	4,584,191	45,771	-	4,629,962
Transportation		·		,
equipment	17,435	-	_	17,435
Other equipment	334,263	<u>70,273</u>		404,536
	4,936,889	116,044	_	5,052,933
Less cost charged to operations to	, ,	·		- , ,
date	1,572,724	165,602	444	1,738,326
	\$3,364,165	<u>\$(49,558</u>)	<u>\$</u> -	\$3,314,607

Note 4 - Changes in long-term debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for Vermilion County:

	Balance December 1, <u>1987</u> *	Additions	<u>Deductions</u>	Balance November 30, <u>1988</u>
Accumulated unpaid				
sick pay	\$ 147,686	\$ 650	\$ 16,289	\$ 132,047
Loan agreement -				,
Sheriff's cars	69,346	93,007	54,341	108,012
General obligation			·	•
bonds	875,000	-	175,000	700,000
Courthouse renovation	ı		,	,
lease	4,050,000		118,367	3,931,633
Total	<u>\$5,142,032</u>	<u>\$ 93,657</u>	\$363 ,997	\$4,871,692

*The balance as of December 1, 1987 has been restated to remove the \$3,165,748 unfunded IMRF and SLEP liabilities in accordance with GASB #5.

Note 4 - Changes in long-term debt (continued) \$2,000,000 County Nursing Home bonds, serial bonds due in annual installments of \$125 - 175,000 through December 1, 1992; interest at 4.0% - 4.8%. The balance at 11-30-88 was \$700,000.

> \$100,000 equipment loan agreement, First National Bank of Catlin. Due in quarterly installments of \$9,490 through September, 1989; interest rate 8.24%. Balance at 11-30-88 was \$36,086.

\$93,700 equipment loan agreement, First National Bank of Catlin. Due in quarterly installments of \$8,839 through December, 1990; interest rate 7.841%. Balance at 11-30-88 was \$71,926.

\$4,050,000 Courthouse renovation capital lease, Danville Public Building Commission. Due in annual installments of \$500,000 through December 1, 2002; interest rate 9.423%. Balance at 11-30-88 was \$3,931,633.

Long-term debt excluding accumulated unpaid sick pay obligations, maturing over the next five years and thereafter can be summarized as follows:

Year Ended November 30,		ourthouse enovation <u>Lease</u>		quipment Loan greements	General Obligation 1977 <u>Issue</u>	:	<u>Total</u>
1989	\$	500,000	5	73,318	\$175,000	\$	748,318
1990		500,000		35,355	175,000	-	710,355
1991		500,000		8,839	175,000		683,839
1992		500,000		-	175,000		675,000
1993		500,000		-	<u>-</u>		500,000
Thereafter	_ 5	000,000	_	_		_5	000,000
	7	,500,000		117,512	700,000	8	,317,512
Less							
interest	_3	,568,367	-	9,500		_3	,577,867
	<u>\$3</u>	,931,633	2	108,012	\$700,000	<u>\$4</u>	,739,645

Interest cost incurred by the County for the year ended November 30, 1988 totaled \$432,764.

Note 5 - Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

A. Plan Description

The County contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ("IMRF"), an agent-multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 2,396 local governments and school districts in Illinois. The County's total payroll for the year ended December 31, 1988 was \$7,028,540. Of this amount, \$5,765,001 in payroll earnings were reported to and covered by the IMRF system.

All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at or after age 60 with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3 percent of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years and 2 percent for each year thereafter. IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute.

Participating members are required to contribute 4.5 percent of their annual salary to IMRF. The County is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the System, using the actuarial funding method specified by statute.

B. Related Party Transactions

There were no securities of the County or related parties included in the System's assets.

C. Funding Status and Progress

The amount shown below as the "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of IMRF on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among employers. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits prorated on service and is independent of the funding method used to determine contributions to IMRF.

Note 5 - <u>Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund</u> (continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

C. Funding Status and Progress (continued)
The pension benefit obligation was computed as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 1988.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 3.75% a year compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases of 1% a year, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) postretirement benefit increases of 3% annually.

Total unfunded pension benefit obligation applicable to the County employees was \$1,235,032 at December 31, 1988, determined as follows:

Pension benefit obligations:

Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits	\$ 450,879
Current employees:	
Accumulated employee contributions including allocated investment earnings Employer - financed vested Employer - financed nonvested	1,734,990 3,023,355 741,960
Total pension benefit obligation	5,951,184
Net assets available for benefits at cost (market value is \$5,058,426)	4,716,152
Unfunded pension benefit obligation	\$1,235,032

The pension benefit obligation applicable to retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits is not included in the above schedule due to the fact that this obligation was transferred from the County to IMRF as a whole when the annuity became payable.

Changes in the actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, and methodology are reflected in the December 31, 1988 pension benefit obligation shown above. This amount has been calculated by the IMRF Actuary using the measure described above. The dollar effect of these changes on the pension benefit obligation was not economically determinable by IMRF.

Note 5 - <u>Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund</u> (continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

D. <u>Actuarially Determined Contribution Requirements</u> and Contributions Made

The IMRF funding policy provides for actuarially determined monthly contributions at rates that will accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due without having to be increased for future generations of taxpayers. The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the entry age normal actuarial funding method. IMRF used the level percentage of payroll method to amortize the unfunded liability over an open-ended 40 year period.

The significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation as described in C above, except that the changes described below were not taken into account.

The contributions by the County to IMRF for 1988 of \$307,851, were charged to the County's account and were based on a contribution rate that was calculated in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed through an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 1986. The contribution consisted of (a) \$150,466 normal cost (2.61 percent of 1988 covered payroll) (b) \$118,759 amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (2.06 percent of 1988 covered payroll) and (c) \$38,625 death and disability cost (.67 percent of 1988 covered payroll). The County contributed \$307,851 (5.34 percent of 1988 covered payroll); employees contributed \$259,405 (4.5 percent of 1988 covered payroll).

Changes in the actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, and methodology which took place in 1987 and explained below, are incorporated in the 1989 and 1990 employer contribution rates. These changes are estimated to increase the 1990 rate by approximately 1.63 percent of payroll over the 1989 rate. Separate dollar effects of each change were not economically determinable by IMRF.

E. Trend Information

Trend information is required to give an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and to assess taxpayer interperiod equity. Trend information for years prior to 1987 is unavailable, but will be disclosed in future years as the trend information is accumulated on a year-by-year basis. For the year ended December 31, 1988 and 1987, available assets were sufficient to fund 79.24 and 77.99 percent of the pension benefit obligation. The unfunded pension benefit obligation represented 21.42 percent of the annual payroll for employees covered by the IMRF for 1988 and 20.92 percent for 1987. The County's contributions to the System, all made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, was 5.34 percent of annual covered payroll for 1988, 5.32 percent for 1987.

Note 5 - <u>Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund</u> (continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Digest of Changes

Three areas of changes discussed below have been incorporated in the 1989 and 1990 employer contribution rates and in the December 31, 1988 pension benefit obligation. The changes due to actuarial assumptions will be phased into the employer contribution rate over a three year period, for those employers that have six or more employees and have positive net asset balances, and over a two year period for all other employers.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions were based upon the 1984-86 experience study: (1) A single assumed retirement age for all employees has been replaced by rates which vary by age. (2) The 1989 Group Annuity Mortality Table has been adopted for use in mortality rate calculations for female employees and annuitants. The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table, actuarially adjusted to reflect actual experience has been retained for male employees and annuitants. (3) Disability rates have been decreased to reflect actual experience. (4) Salary rate growth has been increased from 4.50% to 4.75%. (5) Termination rate assumptions have been modified to set up distinct rates for employees with five, six, or seven years of service.

The following statutory benefit changes, resulting from the passage of Public Act 85-0941, will have been implemented in 1988: (1) The 3% annual increase to retired members has been extended to surviving spouse annuitants and to members receiving total and permanent disability payments. (2) The \$1,000 death benefit payable to the survivor of a retired member has been increased to \$3,000. Beginning January 1, 1988, the cost of this benefit will be amortized by inclusion in the retirement contribution rate and removed from the pooled death and disability contribution rate. (3) The early retirement pension discount has been reduced from 1/2% to 1/4% per month.

Note 5 - Sheriff Law Enforcement Personnel

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

A. Plan Description

The County contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ("IMRF"), an agent-multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 2,396 local governments and school districts in Illinois. The County's total payroll for the year ended December 31, 1988 was \$7,028,540. Of this amount, \$644,899 in payroll earnings were reported to and covered by the IMRF system.

Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel, (SLEP) having accumulated at least 20 years of SLEP service and terminating IMRF participation on or after January 1, 1988, may elect to retire at or after age 50 with no early retirement discount penalty. SLEP members meeting these two qualifications are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2 1/2 percent of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 20 years, 2% of their final earnings rate for the next 10 years of credited service, and 1% for each year thereafter. For those SLEP members retiring with less than 20 years of SLEP service the regular IMRF pension formula applies. IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute.

SLEP members are required to contribute 6.5 percent of their annual salary to IMRF. The County is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the System, using the actuarial basis specified by statute.

B. Related Party Transactions

There were no securities of the County or related parties included in the System's assets.

C. Funding Status and Progress

The amount shown below as the "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of IMRF on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among employers. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits prorated on service and is independent of the funding method used to determine contributions to IMRF.

Note 5 - Sheriff Law Enforcement Personnel (continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

C. Funding Status and Progress (continued)
The pension benefit obligation was computed as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 1988.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 3.75% a year compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases of 1% a year, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) postretirement benefit increases of 3% annually.

Total unfunded pension benefit obligation applicable to the County employees was \$263,233 at December 31, 1988, determined as follows:

Pension benefit obligations:

Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits	\$ 80,827
Current employees:	
Accumulated employee contributions including allocated investment earnings Employer - financed vested Employer - financed nonvested	434,160 1,078,775 <u>41,550</u>
Total pension benefit obligation	1,635,312
Net assets available for benefits at cost (market value is \$1,471,657)	1,372,079
Unfunded pension benefit obligation	\$ 263,233

The pension benefit obligation applicable to retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits is not included in the above schedule due to the fact that this obligation was transferred from the County to IMRF as a whole when the annuity became payable.

Changes in the actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, and methodology are reflected in the December 31, 1988 pension benefit obligation shown above. This amount has been calculated by the IMRF Actuary using the measure described above. The dollar effect of these changes on the pension benefit obligation was not economically determinable by IMRF.

Note 5 - Sheriff Law Enforcement Personnel (continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

D. <u>Actuarially Determined Contribution Requirements</u> and Contributions Made

The IMRF funding policy provides for actuarially determined monthly contributions at rates that will accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due without having to be increased for future generations of taxpayers. The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the entry age normal actuarial funding method. IMRF used the level percentage of payroll method to amortize the unfunded liability over an open-ended 40 year period.

The significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation as described in C above, except that the changes described below were not taken into account.

The contributions by the County to IMRF for 1988 of \$66,037, were charged to the County's account and were based on a contribution rate that was calculated in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed through an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 1986. The contribution consisted of (a) \$28,375 normal cost (4.40 percent of 1988 covered payroll) (b) \$31,277 amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (4.85 percent of 1988 covered payroll) and (c) \$6,384 death and disability cost (.99 percent of 1988 covered payroll). The County contributed \$66,037 (10.24 percent of 1988 covered payroll); employees contributed \$38,739 (5.5 percent January through June, and 6.5 percent July through December, of the covered payroll).

Changes in the actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, and methodology which took place in 1987 and explained below, are incorporated in the 1989 and 1990 employer contribution rates. Separate dollar effects of each change were not economically determinable by IMRF.

E. Trend Information

Trend information is required to give an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and to assess taxpayer interperiod equity. Trend information for years prior to 1987 is unavailable, but will be disclosed in future years as the trend information is accumulated on a year-by-year basis. For the year ended December 31, 1988 and 1987, available assets were sufficient to fund 83.90 and 77.53 percent of the pension benefit obligation. The unfunded pension benefit obligation represented 40.81 percent of the annual payroll for employees covered by the SLEP for 1988 and 52.61 percent for 1987. The County's contributions to the System, all made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, was 10.24 percent of annual covered payroll for 1988, 9.93 percent for 1987.

Note 5 - Sheriff Law Enforcement Personnel (continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Digest of Changes

Three areas of changes discussed below have been incorporated in the 1989 and 1990 employer contribution rates and in the December 31, 1988 pension benefit obligation. The changes due to actuarial assumptions will be phased into the employer contribution rate over a three year period, for those employers that have six or more employees and have positive net asset balances, and over a two year period for all other employers.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions were based upon the 1984-86 experience study: (1) A single assumed retirement age for all employees has been replaced by rates which vary by age. (2) The 1989 Group Annuity Mortality Table has been adopted for use in mortality rate calculations for female employees and annuitants. The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table, actuarially adjusted to reflect actual experience has been retained for male employees and annuitants. (3) Disability rates have been decreased to reflect actual experience. (4) Salary rate growth has been increased from 4.50% to 4.75%. (5) Termination rate assumptions have been modified to set up distinct rates for employees with five, six, or seven years of service.

The following statutory benefit changes, resulting from the passage of Public Act 85-0941, will have been implemented in 1988: (1) The 3% annual increase to retired members has been extended to surviving spouse annuitants and to members receiving total and permanent disability payments. (2) The \$1,000 death benefit payable to the survivor of a retired member has been increased to \$3,000. Beginning January 1, 1988, the cost of this benefit will be amortized by inclusion in the retirement contribution rate and removed from the pooled death and disability contribution rate. (3) The early retirement pension discount has been reduced from 1/2% to 1/4% per month. (4) The pension formula applicable to Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel lowered the retirement age to 50 years from 55, and increased the stepped annual retirement rate to 2 1/2% from 2% during the first 20 years, reduced it from 2 1/2% to 2% during the next ten years, and from 2 1/2% to 1% after 30 years. The member's share of the cost of these increased benefits will be reflected through an increase in SLEP member contributions from 5.5% to 6.5%, effective July 1, 1988.

Note 6 - Lease agreements

Courthouse renovation lease

The County entered into a lease agreement with the Danville Public Building Commission, wherein the Commission will renovate the existing Vermilion County Courthouse and Annex and lease it to Vermilion County for a period beginning on December 1, 1987 and ending on December 31, 2002.

The annual rent is due on or before December 1 of each year in the following amounts:

<u>Year</u>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>Year</u>	<u>Amount</u>
1988	\$500,000	1996	\$500,000
1989	500,000	1997	500,000
1990	500,000	1998	500,000
1991	500,000	1999	500,000
1992	500,000	2000	500,000
1993	500,000	2001	500,000
1994	500,000	2002	500,000

At the end of the lease, the title to the site and all remaining assets will revert back to the County.

In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 13 (FASB 13) "Accounting for Leases," the County capitalized the lease. It was capitalized at the fair market value, of the property at the inception of the lease. However, since the County does not record fixed assets, the value of the property has not been reflected in the financial statements.

Property tax is levied in the Debt Service Fund to provide for payments on the lease. The lease obligation is reflected in general long-term debt group of accounts (Note 4).

Public Safety Building Lease

A lease agreement was entered into as of October 8, 1984, with the City of Danville and County of Vermilion wherein the Commission has agreed to lease the Public Safety Building to the City and County for their joint use. This agreement includes the operations of a Joint Communications Center whose costs will be divided and apportioned equally between the County and City. The agreement provides also for the salaries and fringe benefits of "leased" employees whose costs shall be apportioned solely to the County.

Lease payments are due as follows:

November 30, 1989

\$1,917,400



Note 6 - <u>Lease agreements</u> (continued)

If, in any year, the rental payments are in excess of funds required, the Commission shall either refund the excess to the City and County or the City and County may abate their respective tax levies by the excess. If, in any year, the rental payments are insufficient, the Commission shall consult with the City and County and provide essential services that can be had by use of such available funds.

Lease expense for the year ended November 30, 1988 was \$1,833,708.

Note 7 - Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay are not accrued in Governmental Funds. The liability of the County for accumulated unpaid sick pay is recorded in the General Long-term Debt Account

unpaid sick pay is recorded in the General Long-term Debt Account Group. No County employee is allowed to accumulate vacation days.

The County, for years ending after November 30, 1984, allows employees ten personal days per year in lieu of sick days. Unused days are paid annually.

The County gave employees two options on sick days accumulated prior to November 30, 1984. Under one option, employees could use the days as personal days, option 1 expired June 30, 1986. The second option allows employees to carryforward the days and be used for long-term illness.

Note 8 - Segment information for Enterprise Funds

	Nursing <u>Home</u>	County <u>Farm</u>	<u>Total</u>
Operating revenues	\$3,545,882	\$57,194	\$3,603,076
Depreciation	165,602	- .	165,602
Operating income	22,723	18,139	40,862
Other financing uses:			
Operating transfers out	-	21,000	21,000
Net income (loss)	22,723	(2,861)	19,862
Property and equipment			
additions	116,044	-	116,044
Net working capital	1,083,740	11,070	1,094,810
Total equity	4,397,347	12,070	4,409,417

Note 9 - Additional disclosures

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure, as part of the general purpose financial statements, of certain information concerning individual funds including:

- A. Segment information for certain individual Enterprise Funds.

 This requirement is effectively met in this report by Note 8:
- B. Summary disclosures of debt service requirements to maturity for all types of outstanding debt. This requirement is met by Note 4.
- C. Summary disclosures of changes in all fixed assets by major asset class. Fixed assets are disclosed in Note 3.
- D. Summary disclosures of changes in general long-term debt. This requirement is met by Note 4.
- E. Deficit fund balances of individual funds. Victim Witness Program Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance of \$1,168 at November 30, 1988 and Community Occupant Protection Program Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance of \$8,032 at November 30, 1988.
- F. Interfund receivable and payable balances. This requirement is met by Note 2.
- G. Appropriations Appropriations lapse at November 30, 1988.

Note 10 - Non-budgetary funds

The following special revenue funds are not budgeted by the County:

Highway Administrative Payroll Emergency Shelter Grant

In addition the following expendable trust funds are not budgeted by the County:

- 1. Township MFT
- 2. Bond Fund Construction
- 3. Drainage District
- 4. Law Library
- 5. Board of Election Commissioners
- 6. Working Cash
- 7. Regional Superintendent

These funds have been omitted from the "actual" totals on Statement 3 to provide a more meaningful comparison.

Note 10 - <u>Non-budgetary funds</u> (continued)

Following is a reconciliation between budgetary and non-budgetary special revenue funds and expendable trust funds.

		Actual	
		Non-	Total
	Budgetary	Budgetary	Expendable
Expendable Trust Funds	<u>Funds</u>	<u>Funds</u>	<u>Trust Funds</u>
Revenues	\$ 196,510	\$1,590,215	\$1,786,725
Expenditures	<u>109,270</u>	<u>1,278,576</u>	1,387,846
Excess (deficiency) of revenues	:		
over expenditures	<u>87,240</u>	<u>311,639</u>	398,879
Other financing sources (uses)		•	
Operating transfers in	-	21,818	21,818
Operating transfers out	-	<u>(20,697)</u>	(20,697)
Total other financing sources			
(uses)		1,121	1,121
Excess (deficiency) of revenues			
and other sources over expendi	tures		
and other uses	87,240	312,760	400,000
Fund balance at beginning of year	<u>302,760</u>	<u>670,761</u>	973,521
Fund balance at end of year	<u>\$ 390,000</u>	<u>\$ 983,521</u>	<u>\$1,373,521</u>
Special Revenue Funds			
Revenues	\$7,642,882	\$ 109,887	\$7,752,769
Expenditures	<u>7,176,939</u>	182,119	7,359,058
Excess (deficiency) of			
revenues over expenditures	465,943	(72,232)	393,711
Other financing uses	2	_	2
Excess (deficiency) of			
revenues and other			
sources over expenditures			
and other uses	465,941	(72, 232)	393,709
Fund balance at beginning			
of year	6,157,946	<u>133,301</u>	6,291,247
Fund balance at end of year	<u>\$6,623,887</u>	<u>\$ 61,069</u>	\$6,684,956

Note 11 - Cash and investments

Bank deposits - As of November 30, 1988, the carrying amount of the County's deposits were \$8,002,744 and the bank balance was \$8,636,308. Of the bank balance \$660,083 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, \$4,617,566 was collateralized with securities held by a third party in the County's name, and \$3,358,659 is uninsured and uncollateralized.

Note 11 - Cash and investments (continued)

Investments - Statutes authorize the County to invest in bonds, notes, certificates, treasury bills or other securities guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government as to principal and interest, short-term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, certificates of deposit, time deposits or savings accounts which constitute direct obligations of any bank, shares and securities of savings and loan associations, share accounts of an Illinois or federal chartered credit union, the State Treasurer's investment pool commercial paper noted in the A category by two standard rating services and maturity dates no longer than 180 days or money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

The County's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the County at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured. Category 2 includes uninsured investments including investments for which securities are held by the banks agent for purposes of collaterizing the investments but are not specifically in the name of the County.

	Category $\frac{1}{}$	Category	Carrying <u>Amount</u>	Market <u>Value</u>
Certificates of deposit	\$6,196,509	\$2,200,000	\$8,396,509	\$8,396,509

Note 12 - Grant contingency

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such audits could lead to reimbursement to grantor agencies. The audit of the County for the year ended November 30, 1988, which was conducted in accordance with the "single-audit" concept, resulted in the issuance of a separate report on federal grant compliance. This separate report noted no instances of non-compliance with grant terms and provisions. County management believes cost disallowances, if any, noted in connection with the periodic audits over state funds will be immaterial.

Note 13 - Prior year balances

The Health Department has been reclassified from the General Fund to the Special Revenue Funds. Beginning fund balances in the financial statements have been restated to reflect this change.

	General Fund	Special Revenue Funds
Beginning fund balance as	rand	runus
previously reported	\$2,929,313	\$5,438,747
Reclassification of Health Department	<u>(143,422</u>)	143,422
Beginning fund balance, as restated	<u>\$2,785,891</u>	\$5,582,16 <u>9</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS November 30, 1988

Note 14 - Danville Public Building Commission

Based on the criteria established by N.C.G.A. Statement 3 Defining the Governmental Reporting Entity as supplemented by NCGA

Interpretation - 7 Clarification as to the Application of Criteria in NCGA Statement 3. The following disclosures are required for the joint venture between Vermilion County and the Danville Public Building Commission.

The Danville Public Building Commission was organized under the provisions of the "Public Building Commission Act of the State of Illinois" to enable the erecting, equipping and providing of modern public buildings to space and house the various branches, departments and agencies of government in the County Seat of Vermilion County, Illinois.

The Commission officials of the Danville Public Building Commission are appointed by the City of Danville, Danville Sanitary District, Danville School District #118 and Vermilion County.

The County has only indirect control over the Commissions budgeting and financing through the appointment of one commission official. However, all capital improvement projects financed by the Commission must be approved by the City of Danville, Vermilion County and the Public Safety Building Commission.

The following is a summary of the financial information presented in the financial statements issued by the Danville Public Building Commission as of October 31, 1988.

Balance Sheet Total assets	<u>Total</u> \$22,726,012	Vermilion County's <u>Share</u> \$11,194,971
Total liabilities	\$17,895,946	\$ 7,572,421
Total retained earnings	4,830,066	3,622,550
Total liabilities and retained earnings	\$22,726,012	<u>\$11,194,971</u>
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Cha	anges in Fund l	Equity
Total revenues	\$ 3,771,437	\$ 2,924,765
Total expenditures	<u>3,965,777</u>	3,070,520
Excess of expenditures over revenues	(194,340)	(145,755)
Retained earnings (beginning of year)	7,515,784	4,672,506
Changes in classification prior year	<u>(2,491,378</u>)	(904,201)
Retained earnings (end of year)	\$ 4,830,066	\$ 3,622,550

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS November 30, 1988

Note 14 - <u>Danville Public Building Commission</u> (continued)
Bonds are payable for the Danville Public Building Commission at
October 31, 1988 and are comprised of the following:

\$1,300,000 New East End Elementary School Bonds, serial bonds due in remaining annual installment of \$225,000 due December 1, 1988, interest at 5.1%

\$ 225,000

\$3,940,000 County Building Revenue Bonds, serial bonds due in annual installments of \$100,000 - \$365,000 through January 1, 2003; interest at 6.1% - 8.00%.

3,840,000

\$3,900,000 school building revenue bonds, serial bonds due in annual installment of \$450,000 through June 1, 2003; interest at 6.5% - 8.5%.

3,900,000 \$ 7,965,000

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds outstanding as of October 31, 1988 are as follows:

Year ended October 31

1989	\$ 350,000
1990	575,000
1991	150,000
1992	325,000
1993	350,000
Thereafter	6,215,000
	\$ 7 965 000

Note 15 - Capital outlay expenditures

The following is a summary of capital outlay expenditures which are included in the applicable department expenditures in each fund type:

General Fund	\$	245,399
Special Revenue Funds		57,643
Capital Project Funds		110,937
Fiduciary Funds	_1	,200,972
	<u>\$1</u>	,614,951

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

GENERAL FUND

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

		•
	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>Assets</u>		
Cash	\$ 249,199	\$ 624,945
Investments, at cost	1,749,531	1,569,883
Receivables:		
Taxes	316,006	284,030
Accounts	-	6,252
Accrued interest	12,159	13,935
Due from other funds	697,887	370,327
Due from other governments	543,246	561,124
Inventory, at cost	2,134	2,134
Total assets	<u>\$3,570,162</u>	\$3,432,630
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Accounts payable	\$ 162,874	\$ 186,863
Other accrued expense	130,747	145,518
Due to other funds	139,609	168,293
Deferred revenue	-	801
Due to others	18,725	3,434
Total liabilities	451,955	504,909
Fund balances		
Reserved for inventory	2,134	2,134
Unreserved	3,116,073	2,925,587
Total fund balances	3,118,207	2,927,721
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$3,570,162	\$3,432,630

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

1988

		T300		
			Variance	
			Favorable	1987
Revenues	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	(<u>Unfavorable</u>)	<u>Actual</u>
Taxes	\$2,243,095	\$2,391,479	\$148,384	\$2,281,682
Licenses and permits	25,000	27,035	2,035	24,140
Intergovernmental	1,182,928	1,458,970	276,042	1,550,794
Charges for services	802,500	885,419	82,919	981,370
Fines and forfeits	210,000	205,273	(4,727)	230,439
Miscellaneous	266,600	<u>222,554</u>	(44,046)	<u>319,557</u>
Total revenues	4,730,123	5,190,730	460,607	5,387,982
Expenditures				
General government	1,910,062	1,872,202	37,860	1,837,458
Judiciary and court	_,,,	_,,	.,,	<i>x</i> ,00,,.00
related	1,521,072	1,491,974	29,098	1,481,306
Public Safety	983,649	974,741	8,908	1,027,436
Health and Welfare	8,602	8,203	399	8,630
Other	221,602	136,377	85,225	<u>151,576</u>
Total expenditures	4,644,987	4,483,497	161,490	4,506,406
Excess of revenues over				
expenditures	85,136	707,233	622,097	881,576
expendicules	00,100	707,233	022,097	001,370
Other financing sources (uses)				
Operating transfers in	_	73,243	73,243	23,375
Operating transfers out	(661,500)	(589,990)	71,510	(1,168,000)
operating clansicis out	(661,500)	$\frac{(516,747)}{(516,747)}$	$\frac{71,510}{144,753}$	(1,144,625)
	(001,500)	(510,747)	144,133	(1,144,022)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues				
over expenditures and other				
sources (budget basis)	\$ (576,364)	190,486	\$766,850	(263,049)
sources (budget basis)	<u>\$ (370,304</u>)	190,400	\$700,030	(203,049)
Fund balance at beginning of yea	r	2,927,721		2,785,891
Residual equity transfer				404,444
Residual equity classies		-		404,444
Increase in reserve for inventor	у	-		435
Fund balances at end of year		\$3,118,207		<u>\$2,927,721</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
General Government				
County Board Personal services Contractual services Supplies Other services and	\$116,291 220 3,280	\$115,229 220 3,281	\$ 1,062	\$ 96,718 9,193 2,509
charges Capital outlay	52,669 400 172,860	52,772 400 171,902	(103) 958	52,731
County Auditor Personal services Contractual services Supplies Other services and charges	46,260 225 453 833 47,771	46,260 225 404 <u>681</u> 47,570	- - 49 <u>152</u> 	51,660 225 1,115
Data processing Personal services Contractual services Supplies Other services and charges Capital outlay	69,313 3,902 5,166 15,880 774 95,035	71,035 2,637 5,107 15,829 774 95,382	(1,722) 1,265 59 51 (347)	72,533 1,057 5,270 14,348 6,783 99,991
County Treasurer Personal services Contractual services Supplies Other services and charges Capital outlay	109,300 200 8,442 20,150 	109,300 200 8,595 19,984 	- (153) 166 	113,868 285 8,704 19,529
Non-departmental Contractual Other services and charges Capital outlay	37,082 29,045 42,387 108,514	25,912 29,416 42,387 97,715	11,170 (371) - 10,799	41,453 104,301

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
General Government				
County supplies	\$ 6,326	<u>\$ 3,700</u>	<u>\$ 2,626</u>	\$ 3,482
Capital outlay	119,896	117,436	2,460	142,630
Merit Commission				
Personal services	1,200	1,200	-	1,200
Contractual services	3,025	2,570	455	1,647
Supplies	155	47	108	90
Other services and				
charges	<u>1,760</u>	1,081	679	1,402
	6,140	4,898	1,242	4,339
Regional Superintendent of Schools				
Personal services	49,080	49,080	-	45,345
Supplies	2,800	2,784	16	2,555
Other services and	,	•		ŕ
charges	14,613	10,767	3,846	11,552
	66,493	62,631	3,862	59,452
County Clerk				
Personal services	182,612	182,766	(154)	167,779
Contractual services	6,310	6,302	8	5,278
Supplies	68,000	68,230	(230)	62,829
Other services and	00,000	00,230	(230)	02,027
charges	28,690	27,815	875	27,869
Capital outlay	20,090	27,013	073	79
capital outlay	285,612	285,113	499	263,834
	205,012	200,110	433	205,054
County Recorder	-			
Personal services	72 752	74,236	(483)	67,405
	73,753		• •	
Contractual services	1,125	809	316	9,125
Supplies	8,700	8,157	543	8,840
Other services and	e 7//	E 300	c 7 c	/ 700
charges	5,764	5,189	<u>575</u>	4,729
	<u>89,342</u>	<u>88,391</u>	<u>951</u>	90,099

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
			Variance	
		_	Favorable	1987
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	(<u>Unfavorable</u>)	<u>Actual</u>
General Government				
Election Commission		•		
Personal services	\$ 72,265	\$ 68,115	\$ 4,150	\$ 61,975
Contractual services	5,800	4,990	810	688
Supplies	54,501	52,436	2,065	53,164
Other services and	·			
charges	26,470	22,625	3,845	19,265
Capital outlay	<u></u>	-		9,900
•	159,036	<u>148,166</u>	<u>10,870</u>	<u>144,992</u>
Parad of marian				
Board of review Personal services	23,500	23,500		23,500
Other services and	23,300	23,300	-	23,300
charges	614	607	7	651
Charges	$\frac{614}{24,114}$	24,107	7	24,151
		24,107		
Supervisor of Assessments				
Personal services	142,861	142,157	704	139,541
Contractual services	700	548	152	726
Supplies	5,200	5,179	21	7,678
Other charges	<u>23,846</u>	23,329	517	9,077
	<u> 172,607</u>	<u>171,213</u>	<u>1,394</u>	<u> 157,022</u>
Buildings and grounds				
Personal services	71,483	71,483	_	102,927
Contractual services	187,464	186,729	735	122,861
Supplies	9,200	8,674	526	10,037
Other services and	3,200	0,074	320	10,037
charges	<u> 150,077</u>	149,013	1,064	108,325
citat 600	418,224	415,899	2,325	344,150
Total general				
government	\$1,910,062	\$1,872,202	\$37,860	<u>\$1,837,458</u>
_		***************************************		

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

			1988			
	<u> </u>	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)		· 1987 <u>Actual</u>
Judiciary and court related						
Circuit Clerk						
Personal services	\$	239,943	\$ 239,774	\$ 169	\$	240,302
Contractual services		2,150	2,424	(274)		2,516
Supplies		12,179	14,056	(1,877)		27,538
Other services and						
charges		11,775	 13,086	<u>(1.311</u>)	_	21,728
		266,047	 269,340	(3,293)		<u>292,084</u>
States Attorney						
Personal services		311,621	308,329	3,292		294,460
Contractual services		21,552	21,369	183		14,100
Supplies		9,458	9,427	31		13,311
Other services and		5,430	J, 42.,	31		13,511
charges		34,852	34,632	220		29,806
Capital outlay		2,492	2,490	2		-
•		379,975	 376,247	3,728		351,677
Raps Automation Program		1,720	 1,702	18		
Probation Office						
Personal services		433,067	432,104	963		415,745
Contractual services		35,209	29,480	5,729		30,302
Supplies		10,000	9,692	308		7,719
Other services and		·	•			ŕ
charges		13,094	12,986	108		20,156
Capital outlay	·	13,000	 12,981	19		23,931
		504,370	 497,243	7,127		497,853
Total of comments to the state of the state						
Judiciary and Rules		20 570	/1 005	(1 505)		22 522
Personal services Contractual services		39,570	41,095	(1,525)		33,533
Supplies		82,258 4,500	71,920	10,338		70,280
Other services and		4,500	4,520	(20)		4,753
charges		12,611	10,360	2,251		77,944
Capital outlay		73,500	63,363	10,137		11,744
·		212,439	 191,258	$\frac{10,137}{21,181}$		186,510
	~		 			

⁻continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

		1988		
			Variance	
			Favorable	1987
	<u>Budget</u>	Actual	(<u>Unfavorable</u>)	Actual
				<u> </u>
Judiciary and Court Related				
Public Defender				
Personal services	\$ 133,891	\$ 134,392	\$ (501)	\$ 138,668
Contractual services	16,475	15,902	573	7,519
Supplies	1,450	1,447	3	2,268
Other services and				,
charges	4,705	4,443	262	4,727
	<u>156,521</u>	<u>156,184</u>	337	153,182
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Total judiciary and				
court related	\$1,521,072	\$1,491,974	\$ 29,098	\$1,481,306
<u>Public safety</u>				
<u>Sheriff</u>				
Personal services	\$ 659,400	\$ 662,662	\$(3,262)	\$ 693,494
Contractual services	65,213	60,190	5,023	56,975
Supplies	55,420	53,304	2,116	57,465
Other services and		•	•	, "
charges	28,525	26,902	1,623	57,543
Capital outlay	5,867	5,568	299	4,503
	814,425	808,626	5,799	869,980
Emergency Services Disaster				
Agency				
Personal services	61,262	59,219	2,043	44,880
Supplies	2,533	2,262	271	2,566
Other services and				•
charges	3,600	1,514	2,086	5,476
Contractual	1,100	854	246	-
Capital outlay				722
	68,495	63,849	4,646	53,644
<u>Coroner</u>				
Personal services	43,754	43,656	98	43,105
Contractual services	17,047	18,557	(1,510)	11,606
Supplies	1,361	1,427	(66)	1,161
Other services and charges	6,378	6,437	(59)	6,334
	68,540	70,077	(1,537)	62,206
<u>Animcal Control</u>				
Personal services	32,039	32,039	_	41,456
Supplies	150	150		150
	32,189	32,189		41,606
Total public safety	<u>\$ 983,649</u>	<u>\$ 974,741</u>	\$ 8,908	\$1,027,436

-continued-

-41-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Health and Welfare Weed Commission				
Personal services Supplies	\$ 7,328 59	\$ 7,328 12	\$ - 47	\$ 7,328 167
Other services and charges	1,215 \$ 8,602	863 \$ 8,203	352 \$ 399	1,135 \$ 8,630
Other Employee benefits	<u>\$221,602</u>	\$136,377	<u>\$85,225</u>	<u>\$151,576</u>

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

VERMILLION COUNTY, ILLINOIS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

		1987
		30
- 1111111111111111111111111111111111111	988	NOVEMBER
456 5717505	vember 30, 1	TOTALS FOR
72.72.73	> 0 N	COMPARATIVE
		Ξ - -

Indemnity			157,538				•		417	22,320		ŧ	\$	\$180,275			, (•	1		1		·		180,275		\$180,275	
C o c ⊐ t y		\$ 156,147	1,766,435					•	32,786	ε		75,925		\$2,031,293			\$ 46,437	•	•	•			46,437		1,984,856		\$2,031,293	
Highway Admin. Payroli		\$24,587	27,193				•	r	333	31,870		•	•	\$83,983			\$ 6,802	16,112	•	•			22,914		61,069		\$83,983	
Trans- portation		\$118,807	164,722				16,247	1	3,617			,	•	\$303,393			\$ 13,874	3,542		•			17,416		285,977		\$303,393	
Health Department		\$109,145	•				3,643	19,985	,	•		168,154	1	\$300,927			\$ 26,109	7747	18,806	1,477	63,485		154,621		146,306		\$300,927	
Animal Control		\$27,915					ŧ	•	115	•			*	\$28,030			\$ 3,846	1,247			-		5,093		22,937		\$28,030	
Mental Health Board		\$ 56,998	150,000				32,468	•	1,961	•		·		\$241,427			\$ 41,352	1,073	•	•	-		42,425		199,002		\$241,427	
	ASSETS	Cash	Investments, at cost	Receivables:	Taxes (net of allowance	for estimated	uncollectibles)	Accounts	Accrued interest	Due from other funds	Due from other	governments	Prepaid expense	Total assets	LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	Liabilíties	Vouchers payable	Other accrued expenses	Due to other funds	Due to other governments	Deferred revenue	Total	liabilities	Fund balance · (deficit)	unreserved	Total liabilities	and fund balance	

-continued-

RMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988 ATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER 30, 1987	Public Safety Building Liability Revenue	Rent Insurance Sharing	5 \$ 920,227 \$ 29,388 \$. 7 - 245,921 -		4 319,160 23,050 -	509,799			•	1,757,617	1 \$3,510,807 \$299,332 \$			\$ 25,615 \$ - \$ -		•	•	443,581			2,905,760 299,332 -		\$3,510,807 \$299,332 \$ -
VERMILION SPECIA COMBINI NOVE		I W.	\$106,825 134,827		170,884	8,66	5,483	•	•	B	\$426,681			· (Л	1	32,676	•	1	32,676		394,005		\$426,681
WITH CO	į	FICA	\$ 16,860 150,000		63,140	6,575	150	r	•	•	\$236,725			· •	•	22,909	•	-	22,909		213,816		\$236,725
		ASSETS	Cash Investments, at cost	receivables: Taxes (net of allowance for estimated	uncollectibles	Accounts	Accrued interest		Due from other governments	בייקט בייק עאניסטמים עייקט בייקט	Total assets	LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	Liabilities	Vouchers payable	ω -		Due to other governments	Deferred revenue	Total liabilities	Fund balance - (deficit)	unreserved	Total liabilities and	fund balance

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

	1987
	3.0
November 30, 1988	WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER

Grants

	i di a			
	Occupant	Victim	Victim	
	Protection	Witness .	Witness	RESO
	Ргодгаш	Attorney General		Truancy
ASSETS				
Cash	\$ 8.756	722.78	757 7 5	9
Investments, at cost	• •))
Receivables:				
Taxes (net of allowance				
for estimated				
uncollectibles)	,	ŧ	•	•
Accounts	•		•	•
Accrued interest		*		
Due from other funds	•	•	•	ŧ
Due from other governments	11,773	,		
Prepaid expense		•	•	•
Total assets	\$20,529	\$4,274	\$ 4,654	\$500
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES				
Liabilities				
Vouchers payable	\$ 2,540	\$ 332	\$ 752	\$500
Other accrued expenses	1,021	168	377	*
Due to other funds	25,000	3,000	5,143	•
Due to other governments	•			1
Deferred revenue	West representation of the second			,
Total liabilities	28,561	3,500	6,272	200
Fund balance - (deficit)				
unreserved	(8,032)	774	(1,618)	
fund balance	\$20,529	\$4,274	\$ 4,654	\$500

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

			1087
			2.0
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS	COMBINING BALANCE SHEET	November 30, 1988	WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER

		Grants	107 107	
	Emergency	Multi-		
	Shelter	Jurisdictional	Total	3 (
	Grant	Narcotics Grant	1988	1987
ASSETS				
Cash	, 10	267\$	\$1,585,580	8 088 087
Investments, at cost		•	2 706 646	c
Receivables:				00011017
Taxes (net of allowance				
for estimated				
uncollectibles)	•	1	628 502	740 003
Accounts		•	762,075	700,000
Accrued interest	•	•	0 1 0 0	- 0 · 0 · 0 · 0 · 0 · 0 · 0 · 0 · 0 · 0
Due from other funds	•	ſ	V 20 V V V	.
Due from other governments		•	מעיים מעיים	606,00
0		•	200	275,091
00-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-0	•	,	1,757,617	1,673,925
Total assets		2675	\$7,673,327	\$6,966,122
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES				
Liabilities				
Vouchers payable	1 6A	· •ን	\$ 168,159	799 09 \$
Other accrued expenses	•	1		, 4
Due to other funds		•	218.277	125 176
Due to other governments			1.477	
Deferred revenue	2		507,066	431,836
Total liabilities	ş	ı	988,371	674,875
Fund balance · (deficit) unreserved		7.67	6,684,956	6,291,247
Total liabilities and				
fund balance	-	\$497	\$7,673,327	\$6,966,122

		.Z
LLINOIS	FUNDS	. EXPENDITURES.
COUNTY, 1	REVENUE	REVENUES
VERMILION	SPECIAL	STATEMENT OF
		SING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES <u>Year Ended November 30, 1988</u>

	WITH	COMPARATIVE	TOTALS FOR NO	VEMBER 3	0, 1987		
	Mental				Highway		
	Health	Animal	Health	Trans-	Admin.	County	
REVENUES	Board	Control	Department p	portation	Payroll	N La E	Indemnity
Taxes	\$419,602	, 49	\$ 46,436 \$	\$317,725	· ·	.	5
Intergovernmental				. 1		107 708	
License and permits	,	93,396	• •		,	- u + · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Charges for services	•		161.831	•	ı	•	002 66
Miscellaneous	10,071	1.263	36.954	31 506	103 00	774 676	0 25.0
Total revenues	429,673	94.659	334	2	105 00	1 034 487	71 707
EXPENDITURES	ı			4	107707	1010001	3 4 5 4 6
General Government	ı	•	•	,	,		ı
Public Safety		84.119	•	•			r
Corrections	•	• •	•			•	•
Public Health	512,891		1.189 130		•	• '	
Transportation				728 232	222 67 4		•
Other	,	•	•	000100	104,133	006,088	•
Total expenditures	512 801	84 110	1 180 170	723 232	146 677	, ,	*
Excess (deficiency) of				000,000	106,733	890,500	
expenditures	(83.218)	10 540	(104)	7 1 1 1 1 1	, 670 677	t	
	1		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	(5) (7)	167,27	145,087	31,397
Other financing uses							
Operating transfers in	•	•	•	,	,	•	1
Operating transfers out	•	•	•		•		ı
Total other financing							
uses	•	•	•			•	,
Excess (deficiency) of							
revenues over expenditures							
and other	(83,218)	10,540	(262)	(4,515)	(72,232)	145,687	31,397
				•			
Fund balance (deficit) at							
beginning of year	282,220	12,397	147,102 2	290,492	133,301	1,839,169	148,878
ty transfe		1		-	,	1	
end of year	\$199,002	\$22,937	\$ 146,306 \$2	\$285,977	\$ 61,069	\$1,984,856	\$180,275

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

	1987
	30
30, 1988	NOVEMBER
vember 30	FOR
ded Nove	TOTALS
Ende	IVE
69	COMPARAT
	エ ト 3

ral nue <u>ing</u>		383	,	381 381 2	- 	
Federal Revenue Sharing	49	10,383		10,381	'	· · · · ·
Líability Insurance	\$254,679	275,877 530,556 509,775		509,775		278,551
Public Safety Building Rent	\$1,472,109 1,303,561 -	95,584	2,568,054	2,568,054		303,200
E C	\$ 202,394 154,000	85,874		396,470 396,470 45,798	200,000	548,207
FICA	\$368,757 31,955	500,017		486,201 486,201 13,816	200,000	\$213,816
	REVENUES Taxes Intergovernmental License and permits Charges for services	T T E O U	Corrections Public Health Transportation	Other Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	י ס יי ס ב י	and other Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year Residual equity transfer Fund balance (deficit) at end of year

-continued-

	VERMI	ပ	•	
S	SPECI Combining Statement	SPECIAL REVENUE FL Ment of Revenues,	UE FUNDS UES, EXPENDITURES	IRES, AND
	CHAN		BALANCES	
	Year End	ed Nover	FOR NOVEMBER 30	787
		6.		j
	Community	Victim		
	Occupant	Witness -	Victim	
	Protection	Attorney	Coordinator	RESQ -
REVENUES	Program	General	Program	Truancy
	۱ د	: \$4	4	, 49
vernmen	65,823	8,091	21,270	43,275
and	•	r		í
Charges for services	1,171	•	•	•
Miscellaneous	F :	14	1,189	1
Total revenues	766,994	8,105	22,459	43,275
EXPENDITURES				
	•	•	,	
Public Safety	•	•		1
Corrections	•	•		
Public Health	•		•	
Transportation	r	•	•	
Other	78,859	8,410	21,934	48.876
Total expenditures	78,859	8,410	21,934	48,876
Excess (deficiency) of				
revenues over expenditures	(11,865)	(305)	525	(5,601)
Other financing uses				
Operating transfers in	•	•	•	
Œ	1	•	•	•
Total other financing uses	I		-	•
Excess (deficiency) of revenues				
over expenditures and other	(11,865)	(302)	525	(5,601)
Fund balance (deficit) at				
5	3,833	1,079	(2,143)	5,601
Residual equity transfer	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e		-	
Fund balance (deficit) at				
of year	\$ (8,032)	\$ 774	\$(1,618)	•
		1	Annual Control of the	

100-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended November 30, 1988 With Comparative Totals for November 30, 1987

)	Grants		
	Emergency	Multi-		
	Shelter	Jurisdictional	Total) 6
REVENUES	Grant	Narcotics Grant	1988	1987
A S X G S	· •	, (4)	\$3,081,702	\$2,959,244
vernm	19,205	18,000	3,502,714	~
License and permits		ı	93,396	70.727
Charges for services	•	ŧ	185,322	241.638
Miscellaneous	181	•	889,635	651.021
Total revenues	19,386	18,000	7.752.769	200 597 2
EXPENDITURES				
General Government	•	,	509,775	066.897
Public Safety	•			910 29
Corrections	•	,	2.568.054	7 411 483
Public Health		•	1,702,021	1 711 150
Transportation		ı	1,407,069	595 792
Other	19,386	17,503	1,088,020	507 920
Total expenditures	19,386	17.503	359.05	, c
Excess (deficiency) of				
revenues over expenditures	•	265	393,711	1,106,408
Other financing uses				
Operating transfers in	•		200.000	7117
Operating transfers out	•	•	200,002	- 1
Total other financing uses			(5)	7 114
Excess (deficiency) of revenues				
over expenditures and other	•	267	393,709	1,113,522
Fund balance (deficit) at				
beginning of year	•	ı	6.291.247	5.582.169
Residual equity transfer	•	***************************************		(404,444)
Fund balance (deficit) at				
end of year	,	207	750 787 75	776 106 73
		l	100	10,671,671

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS MENTAL HEALTH BOARD SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments Receivables: Taxes, net of allowance for	\$ 56,998 150,000	\$ 31,854 220,000
estimated uncollectibles Accrued interest Due from other funds	32,468 1,961	32,468 1,941 <u>327</u>
Total assets	\$241,427	\$286,590
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses Due to other funds	\$ 41,352 1,073	\$ 2,797 1,246 327
Total liabilities	42,425	4,370
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	199,002	282,220
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$241,427</u>	\$286,590

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS MENTAL HEALTH BOARD SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		19	88	<u></u>
	Budget	Actual	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$427,500 - 5,000	\$419,602 	\$(7,898) 5,071	\$411,584 20,000 28,920
Total revenues		429,673	(2,827)	460,504
Expenditures - Public Health				
Administration:				
Personal services Contractual services	70,582	66,510	4,072	73,167
and grants Supplies	443,118 1,250	•	10,299 79	376,439 1,062
Other charges and services Capital outlay	13,850 1,200	•	2,572 87	13,770 644
Total expenditures	530,000	512,891	17,109	465,082
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(97,500</u>)	(83,218)	<u>\$14,282</u>	(4,578)
Fund balance at beginning of year		282,220		286,798
Fund balance at end of year		\$199,002		\$282,220

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS ANIMAL CONTROL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u> 1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Due from other funds Receivables - accrued interest	\$27,915 - 115	\$17,318 298 <u>64</u>
Total assets	<u>\$28,030</u>	<u>\$17,680</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses	\$ 3,846 1,247	\$ 4,562 721
Total liabilities	5,093	5,283
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	22,937	12,397
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$28,030</u>	<u>\$17,680</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS ANIMAL CONTROL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

	1988			
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues License and permits Miscellaneous	\$85,210 	\$93,396 	\$ 8,186 	\$69,515 <u>62</u>
Total revenues	85,210	94,659	9,449	69,577
Expenditures - Public Safety Personal services Contractual services Supplies Other charges and services Capital outlays Total expenditures	49,600 9,723 14,585 10,197 600 84,705	49,150 9,678 14,585 10,115 591 84,119	450 45 - 82 <u>9</u> 	34,564 14,980 11,992 3,780 600 65,916
Excess of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$ 505</u>	10,540	<u>\$10,035</u>	3,661
Fund balance at beginning of year		12,397		8,736
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$22,937</u>		<u>\$12,397</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS HEALTH DEPARTMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
ASSETS		
Cash	\$109,145	\$ 76,484
Receivables:		
Taxes, net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles	2 64.2	2 (/2
Accounts	3,643 19,985	3,643 36,916
Due from other governments	168,154	168,998
Total assets	<u>\$300,927</u>	<u>\$286,041</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable	\$ 26,109	\$ 30,325
Other accrued expense	44,744	13,900
Deferred revenue	63,485	69,198
Due to other funds	18,806	18,806
Due to other governments	1,477	<u>6,710</u>
Total liabilities	154,621	138,939
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	146,306	147,102
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$300,927	<u>\$286,041</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS HEALTH DEPARTMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

	1988			
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Intergovernmental Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$ 47,500 1,005,156 145,000 9,200	\$ 46,436 943,113 161,831 36,954	\$ (1,064) (62,043) 16,831 27,754	\$ 45,363 946,182 221,018
Total revenues	1,206,856	1,188,334	(18,522)	1,230,144
Expenditures - Public Health				
Personal services Supplies Other services and charges Contractual Capital outlay	756,960 95,268 276,522 121,915 7,700	739,079 73,934 287,217 80,442 8,458	17,881 21,334 (10,695) 41,473 (758)	702,272 86,457 370,926 51,996 34,417
Total expenditures	1,258,365	1,189,130	69,235	1,246,068
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$ (51,509</u>)	(796)	\$ 50,713	(15,924)
Fund balance at beginning of year		147,102		<u>163,026</u>
Fund balance at end of year		\$ 146,306		<u>\$ 147,102</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$118,807 164,722	\$176,541 107,344
Taxes, net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles Accrued interest	16,247 3,617	16,247 4,174
Total assets	\$303,393	\$304,306
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses	\$ 13,874 3,542	\$ 9,150 <u>4,664</u>
Total liabilities	17,416	13,814
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	285,977	290,492
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$303,393</u>	<u>\$304,306</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		,
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Miscellaneous	\$ 332,500 10,000	\$317,725 31,596	\$(14,775) 	\$ 226,855 30,381
Total revenues	342,500	349,321	6,821	257,236
Expenditures - Transportation				
Personal services Supplies Contractual services Other services and charges Capital outlay	212,977 131,850 51,000 5,876 53,432	198,868 90,121 30,176 4,386 30,285	14,109 41,729 20,824 1,490 23,147	178,937 133,836 33,786 12,134 58,378
Total expenditures	455,135	353,836	101,299	417,071
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(112,635</u>)	(4,515)	<u>\$108,120</u>	(159,835)
Fund balance at beginning of year		290,492		450,327
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$285,977</u>		\$ 290,492

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATIVE PAYROLL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivable - accrued interest Due from other funds Due from other governments	\$24,587 27,193 333 31,870	\$ 44,643 73,532 252 37,570 5,709
Total assets	\$83,983	<u>\$161,706</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses Due to other funds	\$ 6,802 16,112	\$ - 7,778 20,627
Total liabilities	22,914	28,405
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	61,069	133,301
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$83,983</u>	\$161,706

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATIVE PAYROLL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

	1988			
	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Miscellaneous		\$ 90,501		\$161,042
Expenditures - Transportation				
Personal services		162,733		166,404
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures		(72,232)		(5,362)
Fund balance at beginning of year		133,301		138,663
Fund balance at end of year		\$ 61,069		<u>\$133,301</u>

^{*}Budget information not available.

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u> 1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables - accrued interest Due from other funds Due from other governments		\$ 274,646 1,487,799 9,579 20,669 64,735
Total assets	\$2,031,293	\$1,857,428
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		
Vouchers payable	\$ 46,437	\$ 18,259
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	1,984,856	1,839,169
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$2,031,293</u>	\$1,857,428

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
<u>Revenues</u>	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$ 994,000 <u>85,000</u>	\$ 894,421 141,766		\$ 865,333 79,129
Total revenues	1,079,000	1,036,187	(42,813)	944,462
Expenditures - Transportation	2,300,369	890,500	1,409,869	181,090
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures	es \$(1,221,369)	145,687	<u>\$1,367,056</u>	763,372
Fund balance at beginning of year		1,839,169		1,075,797
Fund balance at end of year		\$1,984,856		\$1,839,169

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS INDEMNITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Investments, at cost Receivable - accrued interest Due from other funds	\$157,538 417 <u>22,320</u>	\$127,841 417 <u>20,620</u>
Total assets	<u>\$180,275</u>	<u>\$148,878</u>
FUND BALANCE		
Unreserved fund balance	<u>\$180,275</u>	<u>\$148,878</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS INDEMNITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

	1988			
Revenues	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$15,000 <u>3,000</u>	\$ 22,320 9,077	\$ 7,320 <u>6,077</u>	\$ 20,620 5,757
Total revenues	18,000	31,397	13,397	26,377
Excess of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$18,000</u>	31,397	\$13,397	26,377
Fund balance at beginning of year		148,878		122,501
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$180,275</u>		\$148,878

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FICA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988

ASSETS

Cash Investments, at cost	\$ 16,860 150,000
Receivables:	150,000
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Accounts Accrued interest	63,140 6,575 150
Total assets	<u>\$236,725</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE	
Liabilities	
Due to other funds	\$ 22,909
<u>Fund balance</u>	
Unreserved fund balance	213,816
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$236,725

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FICA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)
Revenues			
Taxes Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$375,250 - _165,000	\$368,757 31,955 99,305	\$ (6,493) 31,955 <u>(65,695</u>)
Total revenues	540,250	500,017	(40,233)
Expenditures - Other			
FICA	550,000	486,201	63,799
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	(9,750)	13,816	23,566
Other financing sources			
Operating transfers in		200,000	200,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other sources	<u>\$ (9,750</u>)	213,816	<u>\$223,566</u>
Fund balance at beginning of year		-	
Fund balance at end of year		\$213,816	

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$106,825 134,827	\$ 91,477 298,761
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Accounts receivable Accrued interest	170,884 8,662 <u>5,483</u>	193,709 4,185 5,238
Total assets	<u>\$426,681</u>	<u>\$593,370</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Due to other funds	\$ 32,676	\$ 45,163
<u>Fund balance</u>		
Unreserved fund balance	394,005	548,207
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$426,681</u>	<u>\$593,370</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$203,775 154,000 120,000	\$ 202,394 154,000 85,874	\$ (1,381) - (34,126)	\$496,693 169,160 22,560
Total revenues	477,775	442,268	(35,507)	688,413
Expenditures - Other				
IMRF contributions	425,000	396,470	28,530	745,092
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	52,775	45,798	(6,977)	(56,679)
Other financing uses				
Operating transfers out		(200,000)	(200,000)	-
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other	\$ 52,775	(154,202)	<u>\$(206,977</u>)	(56,679)
Fund balance at beginning of year		548,207		604,886
Fund balance at end of year		\$ 394,005		\$548,207

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING RENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash	\$ 920,227	\$ 241,088
Investments	¥ 320,227	330,924
Receivables:		330,924
Taxes (net of allowance for		
estimated uncollectibles)	319,160	319,160
Accounts	509,799	416,430
Accrued interest	4,004	1,381
Prepaid expense	<u>1,757,617</u>	<u>1,673,925</u>
Total assets	<u>\$3,510,807</u>	<u>\$2,982,908</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable		
Other accrued expenses	\$ 25,615	\$ 3,733
Due to other funds	25,108	13,179
Deferred revenue	110,743	798
Delotion icvende	443,581	<u>362,638</u>
Total liabilities	605,047	380,348
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	2,905,760	2,602,560
Total liabilities and		
fund balance	A3 510 00-	
Tana parance	<u>\$3,510,807</u>	<u>\$2,982,908</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING RENT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$1,498,625 1,339,375 23,000	\$1,472,109 1,303,561 95,584	\$(26,516) (35,814) 72,584	\$1,490,620 1,367,040 61,240
Total revenues	2,861,000	2,871,254	10,254	2,918,900
Expenditures - Corrections				
Personal services Contractual service Rent	658,991 115,200 1,917,400	635,676 98,670 1,833,708	23,315 16,530 83,692	581,235 83,799 <u>1,746,449</u>
Total expenditures	2,691,591	2,568,054	123,537	2,411,483
Excess of revenues over expenditures	\$ 169,409	303,200	\$133 ,791	507,417
Fund balance at beginning of year		2,602,560		2,095,143
Fund balance at end of year		\$2,905,760		\$2,602,560

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS LIABILITY INSURANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash	\$ 29,388	\$ 23,838
Investments	245,921	231,307
Receivables:		
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Accrued interest	23,050 <u>973</u>	23,050 1,194
Total assets	<u>\$299,332</u>	\$279,389
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable	\$ -	\$ 838
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	<u>299,332</u>	<u>278,551</u>
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$299,332	<u>\$279,389</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS LIABILITY INSURANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

	·	1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Miscellaneous	\$256,500 239,168	\$254,679 275,877	\$(1,821) _36,709	\$288,129 _244,349
Total revenues	495,668	530,556	34,888	532,478
Expenditures - General Government				
Insurance	<u>511,671</u>	509,775	1,896	468,990
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(16,003</u>)	20,781	<u>\$36,784</u>	63,488
Fund balance at beginning of year		278,551		215,063
Fund balance at end of year		\$299,332		<u>\$278,551</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	1988	<u>1987</u>
ASSETS		
Cash	\$	<u>\$ </u>
FUND BALANCE		
Unreserved fund balance	\$ -	\$ -

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$ - 	\$ - _10,383	\$ - _(3,234)	\$ 5,546
Total revenues	13,617	10,383	(3,234)	5,546
Expenditures - Other				
Contractual and grants Capital outlays	500 	500 9,881	- 13,619	1,452 20,879
Total expenditures	24,000	10,381	13,619	22,331
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	(10,383)	2	10,385	(16,785)
Other financing uses				
Operating transfers out	***	(2)	(2)	-
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures and other uses	<u>\$(10,383</u>)	-	<u>\$10,383</u>	(16,785)
Fund balance at beginning of year				16,785
Fund balance at end of year		\$ -		<u>\$</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMMUNITY OCCUPANT PROTECTION PROGRAM GRANT COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

<u>ASSETS</u>	1988	<u>1987</u>
Cash Due from other governments	\$ 8,756 	\$ 649 _30,924
Total assets	\$20,529	<u>\$31,573</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expense Due to other funds	\$ 2,540 1,021 _25,000	\$ - - 27,740
Total liabilities	28,561	27,740
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	(8,032)	3,833
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$20,529	<u>\$31,573</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COMMUNITY OCCUPANT PROTECTION PROGRAM GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Charges for service	\$ 63,729	\$ 65,823 1,171	\$ 2,094 	\$81,113
Total revenues	63,729	<u>66,994</u>	<u>3,265</u>	<u>82,325</u>
Expenditures - Other				
Personal services Supplies Other services and charges Contractual services Capital outlay	55,018 15,335 9,157 14,793 10,201	53,731 3,047 6,877 9,097 <u>6,107</u>	1,287 12,288 2,280 5,696 4,094	49,097 9,160 11,554 330 8,465
Total expenditures	104,504	78,859	25,645	78,606
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	(40,775)	(11,865)	28,910	3,719
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in			-	114
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other sources	<u>\$(40,775</u>)	(11,865)	<u>\$28,910</u>	3,833
Fund balance at beginning of year		3,833		
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year		<u>\$ (8,032</u>)		\$ 3,833

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VICTIM WITNESS - ATTORNEY GENERAL GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

<u>ASSETS</u>	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Cash Due from other funds	\$4,274	\$ - _1,079
Total assets	<u>\$4,274</u>	\$1,079
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses Due to other funds	\$ 332 168 3,000	\$ - - -
Total liabilities	3,500	-
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance	774	1,079
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$4,274</u>	<u>\$1,079</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VICTIM WITNESS - ATTORNEY GENERAL GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$ 4,192 ———	\$8,091 ————————————————————————————————————	\$3,899 14	\$ 3,891
Total revenues	4,192	8,105	3,913	_3,891
Expenditures - Other				
Personal services Supplies	8,126 118	8,126 108	- 10	5,121 167
Other services and charges	<u> </u>	<u> 176</u>	1	<u>524</u>
Total expenditures	8,421	8,410	11	5,812
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures	(4,229)	(305)	3,924	(1,921)
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in	***		<u> </u>	3,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures				
and other sources	<u>\$(4,229</u>)	(305)	\$3,924	1,079
Fund balance at beginning of y	ear	1,079		
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$ 774</u>		<u>\$ 1,079</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VICTIM COORDINATOR PROGRAM GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

<u>ASSETS</u>	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Cash	\$ 4,654	<u>\$ - </u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND DEFICIT		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses Due to other funds	\$ 752 377 5,143	\$ - - - 2,143
Total liabilities	6,272	2,143
Fund deficit		
Unreserved fund deficit	(1,618)	(2,143)
Total liabilities and fund deficit	<u>\$ 4,654</u>	<u>\$ - </u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VICTIM COORDINATOR PROGRAM GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$19,341	\$21,270 	\$1,929 	\$16,900
Total revenues	19,341	22,459	3,118	16,900
Expenditures - Other				
Personal services Supplies Other services and charges Contractual services	19,438 306 96 2,093	19,530 263 48 2,093	(92) 43 48	17,527 96 1,420
Total expenditures	21,933	21,934	(1)	19,043
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(2,592</u>)	525	<u>\$3,117</u>	(2,143)
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year		(2,143)		
Fund deficit at end of year		<u>\$(1,618</u>)		<u>\$(2,143</u>)

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS RESQ - TRUANCY GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

<u>ASSETS</u>	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Cash Due from other governments	\$500 —-	\$10,449 4,725
Total assets	<u>\$500</u>	<u>\$15,174</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		
Vouchers payable Due to other funds	\$500 —-	\$ - 9,573
Total liabilities	500	9,573
Fund balance		
Unreserved fund balance		5,601
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$500</u>	<u>\$15,174</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS RESQ - TRUANCY GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental	\$48,620	\$43,275	<u>\$(5,345</u>)	\$67,212
Expenditures - Other				
Personal services Contractual services Supplies	46,526 500 -	46,272 500	254 - -	58,000 1,169 1,404
Other services and charges	2,673	2,104	<u>569</u>	5,038
Total expenditures	49,699	48,876	823	_65,611
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	(1,079)	(5,601)	(4,522)	1,601
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in		-	<u> </u>	4,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources	<u>\$(1,079</u>)	(5,601)	<u>\$(4,522</u>)	5,601
Fund balance at beginning of year	ır	5,601		
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$</u> -		<u>\$ 5,601</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988

ASSETS

Cash

FUND BALANCE

Unreserved fund balance

\$ -

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)
Revenues			
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous		\$19,205 181	
Total revenues		19,386	
Expenditures - Other			
Personal service Supplies Other charges Contractual Capital outlay		2,466 152 2,691 2,988 11,089	•
Excess of revenues over expenditures		19,386	
Fund balance at beginning of year			
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$ -</u>	

^{*}Budget information not available.

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL NARCOTICS GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988

ASSETS

Cash

Fund balance

Unreserved fund balance

\$497

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL NARCOTICS GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)
Revenue			
Intergovernmental	\$20,000	\$18,000	\$(2,000)
Expenditures - Other	20,000	<u>17,503</u>	2,497
Excess of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$ -</u>	497	<u>\$ 497</u>
Fund balance at beginning of year			
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$ 497</u>	

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988

With Comparative Totals for November 30, 1987

	Courthouse	Nursing Home		<u> </u>
	<u>Renovation</u>	Bond & Interest	<u>1988</u>	<u> 1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>				
Cash	\$ 11,687	\$ 1,950	\$ 13,637	\$ 519,234
Investments, at cost Receivables:	1,058,351	30,725	1,089,076	582,417
Taxes (net of allowance				
for estimated uncollectibles) Accrued interest	4,209	61,825 336	61,825 4,545	120,166 510
iiiozada iiioologa	<u> </u>			
Total assets	<u>\$1,074,247</u>	<u>\$94,836</u>	\$1,169,083	\$1,222,327
FUND BALANCE				
Reserved for Debt Service	<u>\$1,074,247</u>	<u>\$94,836</u>	\$1,169,083	\$1,222,327

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE Year Ended November 30, 1988

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended November 30, 1987

	Courthouse	Nursing Home	Tot	als
	Renovation	Bond & Interes	<u>t 1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$ - 453,400 59,800	\$116,534 52,000 9,415	\$ 116,534 505,400 69,215	\$ 64,597 415,000 27,112
Total revenues	513,200	177,949	691,149	506,709
Expenditures - Debt Service				
Principal retirement Interest Pass through of grant funds	118,367 381,633 453,400	175,000 40,993	293,367 422,626 453,400	150,000 47,583 300,000
Total expenditures	953,400	_215,993	1,169,393	497,583
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	(440,200)	(38,044)	(478,244)	9,126
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in	425,000	66	425,000	925,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other			•	
sources	(15,200)	(38,044)	(53,244)	934,126
Fund balance at beginning of yea	r <u>1,089,447</u>	132,880	1,222,327	288,201
Fund balance at end of year	\$1,074,247	\$ 94,836	\$1,169,083	\$1,222,327

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURTHOUSE RENOVATION DEBT SERVICE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$ 11,687 1,058,351	\$ 431,688 582,417
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Accrued interest	- 4,209	75,000 342
Total assets	\$1,074,247	\$1,089,447
FUND BALANCE		
Reserved for Debt Service	<u>\$1,074,247</u>	\$1,089,447

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURTHOUSE RENOVATION DEBT SERVICE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$ 453,400 25,000	\$ 453,400 59,800	\$ - <u>34,800</u>	\$ 375,000 <u>14,447</u>
Total revenues	478,400	513,200	34,800	389,447
Expenditures - Debt Service				
Principal retirement Interest Pass through of grant	500,000	118,367 381,633	381,633 (381,633)	- -
funds	453,400	453,400		300,000
Total expenditures	953,400	953,400	-	300,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenu over expenditures	es (475,000)	(440,200)	34,800	89,447
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in	500,000	425,000	(75,000)	925,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other uses	<u>\$ 25,000</u>	(15,200)	<u>\$ (40,200</u>)	1,014,447
Fund balance at beginning of year		1,089,447		75,000
Fund balance at end of year		\$1,074,247		\$1,089,447

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS NURSING HOME BOND AND INTEREST DEBT SERVICE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$ 1,950 30,725	\$ 87,546 -
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Accrued interest	61,825 <u>336</u>	45,166 168
Total assets	<u>\$94,836</u>	<u>\$132,880</u>
FUND BALANCE		
Reserved for debt service	<u>\$94,836</u>	<u>\$132,880</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS NURSING HOME BOND AND INTEREST DEBT SERVICE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE Year Ended November 30, 1988

<u>Year Ended November 30, 1988</u> <u>WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED</u> <u>November 30, 1987</u>

		1988		•
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$118,750 40,000 <u>7,500</u>	\$116,534 52,000 9,415	\$(2,216) 12,000 	\$ 64,597 40,000 12,665
Total revenues	166,250	177,949	11,699	117,262
Expenditures - Debt Service				
Principal retirement Interest	175,000 41,013	175,000 40,993	20	150,000 _47,583
Total expenditures	216,013	215,993	20	<u>197,583</u>
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(49,763</u>)	(38,044)	<u>\$11,719</u>	(80,321)
Fund balances at beginning of year		132,880		213,201
Fund balances at end of year		\$ 94,836		<u>\$132,880</u>

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

		WILL CORPARALIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER 50, 146/	THEFT SO, 1907	
	Capital	Township	1	Totals
ASSETS	Improvements	8 r i dge	1988	1987
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$ 73,221 201,130	\$167,588 800,609	\$ 240,809 1,001,739	\$282,742 566,735
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles)	1,102	16,234	16,234	16,234
Total assets	\$275,453	\$997,330	\$1,272,783	\$870,195
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE				
Liabilities				
Vouchers payable Due to other funds	\$ 2,230	\$ 9,568	s 11,798	\$135,781
Total liabilities	2,230	9,568	11,798	141,490
Fund balances				
Unreserved	273,223	987,762	1,260,985	728,705
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$275,453	\$997,330	\$1,272,783	\$870,195

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended November 30, 1988

1987

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,

	Capital	Township		Totals
	Improvements	8 - 1 dge	1988	1987
Revenues				
Taxes	, (4	\$233,037	\$ 233,037	\$ 226,841
Miscellaneous	11,093	43,218	54,311	33,114
Total revenues	11,093	276,255	287,348	259,955
Expenditures - Capital Projects				
Construction	19,381	91,556	110,937	631,981
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	(8,288)	184,699	176,411	(372,026)
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in	355,869		355,869	281,900
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other uses	347,581	184,699	532,280	(90,126)
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year	(74,358)	803,063	728,705	818,831
Fund balance at end of year	\$273,223	\$987,762	\$1,260,985	\$ 728,705

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Accrued interest	\$ 73,221 201,130 1,102	\$ 42,647
Total assets	<u>\$275,453</u>	<u>\$ 43,526</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable	\$ 2,230	\$117,884
Fund balance (deficit) - Unreserved	273,223	(74,358)
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$275,453</u>	\$ 43,526

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ 11,093	\$ 11,093	\$ 3,705
Expenditures - Capital Projects	161,500	19,381	142,119	430,554
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures	(161,500)	(8,288)	153,212	(426,849)
Other financing sources				
Operating transfers in	161,500	<u>355,869</u>	<u>194,369</u>	281,900
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other	\$	347,581	<u>\$347,581</u>	(144,949)
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year		(74,358)		70,591
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year		<u>\$273,223</u>		\$ (74,358)

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TOWNSHIP BRIDGE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash	\$167,588	\$240,095
Investments, at cost Accrued interest	800,609 12,899	566,735 3,605
Receivables:	12,099	3,603
Taxes (net of allowance for		
estimated uncollectibles)	<u>16,234</u>	16,234
Total assets	<u>\$997,330</u>	\$826,669
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Due to other funds	\$ 9,568 ————	\$ 17,897 5,709
Total liabilities	9,568	23,606
<u>Fund balance</u> - Unreserved	987,762	803,063
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$997,330	\$826,669

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TOWNSHIP BRIDGE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
<u>Revenues</u>	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Taxes Miscellaneous	\$ 237,500 18,000	\$233,037 <u>43,218</u>	\$ (4,463) 25,218	\$226,841
Total revenues	255,500	276,255	20,755	256,250
Expenditures - Capital Projects	2,596,200	91,556	2,504,644	201,427
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	\$(2,340,700)	184,699	\$2,525,399	54,823
Fund balance at beginning of year		803,063		_748,240
Fund balance at end of year		\$987,762		\$803,063

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	Vermilion Manor	Vermilion		
	Nursing	County	Tot.	als
<u>ASSETS</u>	<u>Home</u>	<u>Farm</u>	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Current assets	A 001 050	A 70	A 025 000	A 00/ 857
Cash	\$ 934,952	\$ 70	\$ 935,022	\$ 824,357
Investments, at cost	200,000	11,000	211,000	114,507
Accounts receivable	263,913	-	263,913	263,605
Accrued interest	643	-	643	641
Due from other funds			-	1,483
Total current assets	1,399,508	11,070	1,410,578	1,204,593
Property, plant, and equipment				
Land	-	1,000	1,000	1,000
Buildings	4,629,962	-	4,629,962	4,584,191
Transportation equipment	17,435	-	17,435	17,435
Other equipment	404,536		<u>404,536</u>	<u>334,263</u>
	5,051,933	1,000	5,052,933	4,936,889
Less costs charged to				
operations to date	1,738,326		1,738,326	1,572,724
Net property, plant				
and equipment	3,313,607	1,000	3,314,607	3,364,165
Total assets	\$4,713,115	\$12,070	\$4,725,185	\$4,568,758
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY				
Current liabilities				
Vouchers payable	\$ 75,341	\$ -	\$ 75,341	\$ 47,027
Accrued payroll	240,427	· -	240,427	125,111
Due to other funds	-	***************************************	-	7,065
Total current				
liabilities	315,768		315,768	179,203
Post described				
Fund equity Contributed capital	/ E00 E10	1 000	/ E9/ E10	/ E0/ E10
Retained earnings	4,523,518	1,000	4,524,518	4,524,518
(deficit), unreserved	(10(171)	11 070	(115 101)	(12/ 0(2)
(deficit), unfeserved	<u>(126,171</u>)	11,070	(115,101)	(134,963)
Total fund equity	4,397,347	12,070	4,409,417	4,389,555
Total liabilities and				
fund equity	\$4,713,115	<u>\$12,070</u>	\$4,725,185	\$4,568,758

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	Vermilion Manor Nursing	Vermilion County		als
	<u>Home</u>	Farm	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$3,462,837 83,045	\$ - _57,194	\$3,462,837 140,239	\$3,354,546 73,459
Total revenues	3,545,882	57,194	3,603,076	3,428,005
Operating expenses				
Personal services Supplies Contractual services Other services and charges Heat, light and power	2,399,334 147,208 543,679 114,916 152,420	- - - 39,055	2,399,334 147,208 543,679 153,971 152,420	2,213,793 109,848 373,680 161,209 148,942
Depreciation	165,602		165,602	162,732
Total operating expenses	3,523,159	<u>39,055</u>	3,562,214	3,170,204
Operating income	22,723	18,139	40,862	257,801
Nonoperating expense				
Operating transfers out	-	21,000	21,000	20,000
Net income (loss)	22,723	(2,861)	19,862	237,801
Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year	(148,894)	13,931	(134,963)	(372,764)
Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year	\$ (126,17 <u>1</u>)	<u>\$11,070</u>	<u>\$ (115,101</u>)	<u>\$ (134,963</u>)

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	Vermilion Manor	Vermilion		
	Nursing	County		otals 1007
	<u>Home</u>	<u>Farm</u>	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Funds were provided by				
Net income from operations Less charges to operations not affecting funds:	\$ 22,723	\$18,139	\$ 40,862	\$257,801
Depreciation	165,602 188,325	18,139	165,602 206,464	<u>162,732</u> 420,533
Decrease in working capital		2,861	2,861	9,297
Total funds provided	<u>\$188,325</u>	<u>\$21,000</u>	\$209,325	<u>\$429,830</u>
Funds were applied to Operating transfer out Additions to building Purchase of equipment Increase in working capital	\$ - 45,771 70,273 72,281	\$21,000 - - -	\$ 21,000 45,771 70,273 72,281	\$ 20,000 - 53,547 _356,283
Total funds applied	<u>\$188,325</u>	\$21,000	\$209,325	<u>\$429,830</u>
CHANGES	IN WORKING O	CAPITAL		
Increase (decrease) in current a	ssets			
Cash	\$111,326	\$ (661)	\$110,665	\$240,016
Investments, at cost Receivables - accounts and	98,693	(2,200)	96,493	(21,674)
interest	310	-	310	100,721
Due from other funds	(1,483)		<u>(1,483</u>)	1,483
Net increase (decrease)				
in current assets	208,846	<u>(2,861</u>)	205,985	320,546
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities				
Vouchers payable	28,314	-	28,314	(36,825)
Accrued payroll	115,316	-	115,316	15,602
Due to other funds	<u>(7,065</u>)		<u>(7,065</u>)	(5,217)
Net increase (decrease)				
in current liabilities	<u>136,565</u>	***************************************	<u>136,565</u>	_(26,440)
Increase (decrease) in working capital	<u>\$ 72,281</u>	<u>\$(2,861</u>)	\$ 69,420	<u>\$346,986</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VERMILION MANOR NURSING HOME ENTERPRISE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	1988	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Current assets		
Cash Investments, at cost Accounts receivable Accrued interest Due from other funds	\$ 934,952 200,000 263,913 643	\$ 823,626 101,307 263,605 641 1,483
Total current assets	1,399,508	1,190,662
Property, plant and equipment		
Buildings Transportation equipment Other equipment	4,629,962 17,435 404,536 5,051,933	4,584,191 17,435 334,263 4,935,889
Less cost charged to operations to date	1,738,326	1,572,724
Net property, plant and equipment Total assets	_3,313,607 \$4,713,115	_3,363,165 \$4,553,827
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY	4-1,12,112	94,555,627
Current liabilities		
Vouchers payable Accrued payroll Due to other funds	\$ 75,341 240,427	\$ 47,027 125,111 7,065
Total current liabilities	315,768	<u>179,203</u>
<u>Fund equity</u>		
Contributed capital Accumulated deficit, unreserved	4,523,518 <u>(126,171</u>)	4,523,518 <u>(148,894</u>)
Total fund equity	4,397,347	4,374,624
Total liabilities and fund equity	<u>\$4,713,115</u>	<u>\$4,553,827</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VERMILION MANOR NURSING HOME ENTERPRISE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u> Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services	\$3,441,231	\$3,462,837	\$ 21,606	\$3,354,546
Miscellaneous	47,237	<u>83,045</u>	<u>35,808</u>	44,686
Total revenues	3,488,468	3,545,882	57,414	3,399,232
Operating expenses				
Personal services	2,423,781	2,399,334	24,447	2,213,793
Supplies	141,169	147,208	(6,039)	109,848
Contractual services	509,662	543,679	(34,017)	373,680
Other services and charges	108,707	114,916	(6,209)	143,139
Heat, light, and power	151,700	152,420	(720)	148,942
Depreciation/capital outlay	<u>136,075</u>	165,602	<u>(29,527</u>)	162,732
Total operating expenses	3,471,094	3,523,159	(52,065)	3,152,134
Net income	<u>\$ 17,374</u>	22,723	\$ 5,349	247,098
Accumulated deficit at				
beginning of year		(148,894)		(395,992)
Accumulated deficit at end of year		¢ (196 171)		¢ /1/0 00/3
ond of jour		\$ (126,171)		<u>\$ (148,894</u>)

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VERMILION MANOR NURSING HOME ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Funds were provided by		
Net income from operations Less charges to operations not affecting funds:	\$ 22,723	\$247,098
Depreciation	165,602	<u>162,732</u>
Total funds provided	<u>\$188,325</u>	<u>\$409,830</u>
Funds were applied to		
Additions to building Purchase of equipment Increase in working capital	\$ 45,771 70,273 72,281	\$ - 53,547 <u>356,283</u>
Total funds applied	\$188,325	\$409,830
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPIT	AL	
Increase (decrease) in current assets		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables - accounts and interest Due from other funds	\$111,326 98,693 310 (1,483)	\$239,608 (20,174) 115,962 1,483
Net increase in current assets	208,846	336,879
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities		
Vouchers payable Accrued payroll Due to other funds	28,314 115,316 (7,065)	(29,789) 15,602 (5,217)
Net increase (decrease) in current liabilities	136,565	(19,404)
Increase in working capital	\$ 72,281	\$356,283

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VERMILION COUNTY FARM ENTERPRISE FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	1987
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Current assets		
Cash Investments	\$ 70 	\$ 731 13,200
Total current assets	11,070	13,931
Property, plant and equipment		
Land	1,000	1,000
Total assets	<u>\$12,070</u>	<u>\$14,931</u>
FUND EQUITY		
Contributed capital Retained earnings	\$ 1,000 	\$ 1,000 13,931
Total fund equity	\$12,070	<u>\$14,931</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VERMILION COUNTY FARM ENTERPRISE FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

<u>Year Ended November 30, 1988</u> <u>WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED</u> <u>November 30, 1987</u>

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Revenues		
Miscellaneous - grain sales - other	\$ 56,688 506	\$ 27,919 <u>854</u>
Total revenues	57,194	28,773
Operating expenses		
Other services and charges - farm	39,055	18,070
Operating income	18,139	10,703
Nonoperating expenses		
Operating transfers out	(21,000)	(20,000)
Net loss	(2,861)	(9,297)
Retained earnings at beginning of year	<u>13,931</u>	23,228
Retained earnings at end of year	<u>\$ 11,070</u>	<u>\$ 13,931</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS VERMILION COUNTY FARM ENTERPRISE FUND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION

Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	<u>1988</u>	<u> 1987</u> ·
Funds were provided by Operations:		
Net income	\$18,139	\$ 10,703
Decrease in working capital	2,861	9,297
Total funds provided	\$21,000	<u>\$ 20,000</u>
Funds were applied to		
Operating transfers out	\$21,000	\$ 20,000
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL		
Increase (decrease) in current assets		
Cash	\$ (661)	\$ 408
Investments	(2,200)	(1,500)
Accounts receivable		(15,241)
Net decrease in current assets	(2,861)	(16,333)
Decrease in current liabilities		
Vouchers payable	_	(7,036)
Decrease in working capital	<u>\$(2,861</u>)	<u>\$ (9,297</u>)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER 30, 1987

	Ex	pendable					
		Trust		Agency	***************************************	Tot	als
		<u>Funds</u>		<u>Funds</u>		<u>1988</u>	<u> 1987</u>
A C C T T C							•
<u>ASSETS</u>							
Cash	\$	895,103	\$4	,083,394	\$4	,978,497	\$4,141,148
Investments, at cost		344,363	1	,204,164	1	,548,527	1,380,916
Receivables:							
Taxes (net of allowance							
for estimated uncollectibles)	77,266		828,942		906,208	1,109,426
Accounts		-		302,096		302,096	, . _
Accrued interest		4,807		8,755		13,562	21,786
Inventory		-		11,025		11,025	12,371
Due from other funds		14,642		751,074		765,716	661,527
Due from other governments		83,285		_		83,285	67,342
0		<u> </u>			***************************************		
Total assets	<u>\$1</u>	,419,466	<u>\$7</u>	,189,450	<u>\$8</u>	,608,916	<u>\$7,394,516</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE							
LIABILITIES							
77 1 1 1		1 064					
Vouchers payable	\$	1,864	Ş	6,990	Ş	8,854	• ,
Accrued expense		7,271		150,296		157,567	114,714
Due to:		26 010	-	100 007		150 00-	
Other funds		36,810		,123,097		,159,907	807,658
Other taxing units		-		,703,736		,703,736	3,528,100
Others		-	2	,193,788	2	,193,788	1,790,479
Other governments		-		11,543		11,543	68,229
Total liabilities		45,945	7	,189,450	7	,235,395	6,420,995
Fund balance, reserved	_1	.373,521			_1	,373,521	973,521
Total liabilities and							
fund balance	<u>\$1</u>	,419,466	<u>\$7</u>	<u>, 189 , 450</u>	<u>\$8</u>	,608,916	\$7,394,516

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

		WITH COMPARA	November 30.	30, 1988 FOR NOVEMBER 30,	BER 30, 1987	21		
	Township	Bond	Drainage	3 0	Board of	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	÷	- - - - -
		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					300	3
\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	- L	COUSTRUCTION	UISTFICT	Library	Commissioners	SCash	Support	Support
Cash	\$ 54,164	\$279,102	\$113,638	\$30,537	\$5,046	€A	\$276,469	\$25,981
Investments, at cost	•	•	53,750	•	•	290,613		
Receivables:								
Taxes (net of allowance	Φ							
for estimated un-								
collectibles)	1	•	77,266	,	å			
Accrued interest	226	567	558	123	•	1,855	1,134	
Due from other funds	ı	t		792	ı	. 1	4,175	,
Due from other governments_	ts_83,285	•	,	•		•		
Total assets	-	\$279,669	\$245,212	\$31,452	\$5.046	\$292,468	\$281,778	\$25.981
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	ANCES							
Liabilities								
Vouchers payable	, 4	· 69	· •	' ₩	, 49	· •		69
Other accrued expenses	•	•	•				,	6.361
Due to other funds	31,869	•	1	•	•	3,580	ŧ	
Total liabilities	31,869	r	•	•		3,580	,	6,361
fund balance								
Reserved for Township								
transportation projects	ts 105,806	279,669		,		ť		
Reserved for drainage								
projects	•	•	245,212	•		•	ţ	
Reserved for law library	ry .	•	•	31,452		•	•	
Reserved for election		•	•		5,046	r	t	
Reserved for working ca	cash -	•	•	•	*	288,888	ļ	,
Reserved for court								
activities		*	•	,		,	281,778	19,620
Reserved for Recorder's	s							
activities	•	•	•	1	ŧ	ı	1	
Reserved for Regional								
Superintendent of								
Schools	1	•	•	•	•	•		
Total fund balance Total liabilities and	105,806	279,669	245,212	31,452	5,046	288,888	281,778	19,620
balance	\$137,675	\$279,669	\$245,212	\$31,452	\$5,046	\$292,468	\$281,778	\$25,981

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

	7
	8
	ω,
	0
	•
	•
	0
	М
	00
	ш
	OVEMB
	Σ
	ш
ılα	>
اد	0
× × ×	Z
-1	
	02
1	FOR
⊸I	ū
٦I	
1	Ø
ᆈ	
<u></u>	=
ovember	_
=	0
~I	H
ZI.	
ŹΙ	
ĭ	_
K.,	
	_
	_
	RATIVE
	œ
	<
	0
	Σ
	COMPA
	ပ
	=
	-
	-
	LIM

	Courthouse	Courthouse	Regional Super-	Recorder's	Tot	Totals	
	Automation	Security	intendent	Special fee	1988	1987	I
ASSETS							
Cash	\$49,326	\$17,814	\$27,448	\$15,578	\$ 895,103	\$ 603,57	.4
Investments, at cost			,	•	344,363	343,51	
Receivables:							
Taxes (net of allowance for							
estimated uncollectibles)			•	r	77,266	50,645	יא
Accrued interest	211	7.2	•	61	4,807	4,388	∞
Due from other funds	3,676	3,773	•	2,226	14,642	13,558	œ
Due from other governments	•	•	ŧ	,	83,285	67,342	2
Total assets	\$53,213	\$21,659	\$27,448	\$17,865	\$1,419,466	\$1,083,01	∞
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES							ı
Liabilities							
Vouchers payable	97 \$	\$ 1,818	, СР	, (1	\$ 1,864	\$ 61,048	ø
Other accrued expenses	•	910		•	7,271	8,370	0
Due to other funds	,	,	•	1,361	36,810	40,079	0
Total liabilities	46	2,728	1	1,361	45,945	109,497	<u>~</u>
Fund balance							
Reserved for Township trans-							
portation projects		•	•	,	385,475	103,821	
Reserved for drainage projects	ŀ		1	,	245,212	209,683	M
Reserved for law library			,	1	31,452	29,165	'n
Reserved for election	•		•	•	5,046	6,961	-
Reserved for working cash			ı	•	288,888	288,888	œ
Reserved for court activities	53,167	18,931	•	•	373,496	288,895	ī
Reserved for Recorder's activities	•	•	•	16,504	16,504	13,86	ĽΩ
Reserved for Regional Superintende	nt						
of Schools	•	,	27,448		27,448	32,243	<u>س</u> ا
fund balance	53,167	18,931	27,448	16,504	1,373,521	973,52	-
Total liabilities and							
fund balance	\$53,213	\$21,659	\$27,448	\$17,865	\$1,419,466	\$1,083,018	ω
					•		

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,

1987

		-	•		Board of			
	d L USUMO I	Bond Fund	Drainage	3 G	Election	Vorking	Court	ch i td
	₩ ₩	Construction	District	Library	Commissioners	SCash	Support	Support
Revenues							f	
⊤axes			\$ 78,520	' #	· 49	,	· •	, ()
Intergovernmental	964,422	444,660	•	ı	15,453	,	ı	
Charges for services	•	•	•	7,170		•	55,210	27.771
Miscellaneous	10,482	7,882	12,189	3,123	•	20,697	7,380	1.752
Total revenues	974,904	452,542	90,709	10,293	15,453	20,697	62,590	29,523
Expenditures								
Transportation	884,193	261,599			•	•	,	,
All others:								
Maintenance	ŧ	r	55,180	,	•	•		•
Books and subscription	. su	•		8,006			,	,
Election expenditures	ı	•	•	,	17,368	•	•	•
Court related expenditures	tures .	r	•	1	•	,	3,972	16,926
School expenditures		•	•			•		•
Recorder's expenditures	e s	•	•	*	•	•	•	1
Total expenditures	884,193	261,599	55,180	8,006	17,368		3,972	16,926
Excess (deficiency) of revenues	venues				-			ī
over expenditures	90,711	190,943	35,529	2,287	(1,915)	20,697	58,618	12,597
Other financing sources (uses)	uses)							
Operating transfers in	•	•	•			•		•
Operating transfers out	1	•	•	,		(20,697)	•	•
Total other financing	מס							•
sources (uses)	4	•	-	•		(20,697)	•	
Excess (deficiency) of rev	revenues							
over expenditures and								
other	90,711	190,943	35,529	2,287	(1,915)	,	58,618	12,597
Fund balance at beginning								
of year	15,095	88,726	209,683	29,165	6,961	288,888	223,160	7,023
Fund balance at end of								
	\$105,806	\$279,669	\$245,212	\$31,452	\$ 5,046	\$288,888	\$281,778	\$19,620

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

		Totals	1987		20 \$ 61,386	O.		358 91,241	5 1,2		92 1,235,202		80 50,783		68 22,815	68	30 74,293	927 17,442	846 1,476,904		79 (221,440)		18 62,466	(21 42,166		_	1	21 \$ 973,521
7	j		e 1988		\$ 78,520	1,425,535	188,31	94,3	1,786,72		1,145,792		55,180	0,8	17,368	80,343	52,230	28,9	1,387,8		398,879		21,818	(20,697		1,121		0,004	973,521	\$1,373,52
1988		Recorder's	Special fee		۱ دم	r	30,859	707	31,566		•		•		ŧ	•	,	28,927	28,927		2,639		,	,				2,639	13,865	\$16,504
Year Ended November 30, VE TOTALS FOR YEAR ENDED	I	Super-	intendent		•	1,000	•	24,617	25,617		•		•	•	•	ı	52,230	,	52,230		(26,613)		21,818			21,818		(4,795)	32,243	\$27,448
	1	Court	Security		, 49	•	42,006	840	42,846		•		f	•	•	43,854	,	•	43,854		(1,008)			*		*		(1,008)	19,939	\$18,931
Yes	341	Court	Automation		· 49		25,296	4,689	29,985				ı	•	,	15,591	•	1	15,591		14,394		,			1		14,394	38,773	\$53,167
1110				Revenues	Taxes	Intergovernmental	Charges for services	Miscellaneous	Total revenues	Expenditures	Transportation	All others:	Maintenance	Books and subscriptions	Election expenditures	Court related expenditures	School expenditures	Recorder's expenditures	Total expenditures	Excess (deficiency) of revenues	over expenditures	Other financing sources (uses)	Operating transfers in	Operating transfers out	Total other financing sources	(sesn)	Excess (deficiency) of revenues	over expenditures and other	fund balance at beginning of year	Fund balance at end of year

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TOWNSHIP MFT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Accrued interest income Due from other governments	\$ 54,164 226 83,285	\$ 8,837 - _67,342
Total assets	\$137,675	<u>\$76,179</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable Due to other funds	\$ - _31,869	\$29,222 31,862
Total liabilities	31,869	61,084
Fund balance		
Reserved for Township Transportation Projects	105,806	<u> 15,095</u>
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$137,675</u>	<u>\$76,179</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TOWNSHIP MFT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

		1988	*	
	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous		\$964,422 10,482		\$890,347 <u>8,471</u>
Total revenues		974,904		898,818
Expenditures - Transportation		884,193		903,683
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		90,711		(4,865)
Fund balance at beginning of year		<u>15,095</u>		19,960
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$105,806</u>		<u>\$ 15,095</u>

^{*}Budget information not available

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS BOND FUND CONSTRUCTION COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Accrued interest	\$279,102 567	\$114,463 <u>541</u>
Total assets	\$279,669	\$115,004
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable	\$ -	\$ 26,278
Fund balance		
Reserved for Township Transportation Projects	279,669	88,726
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$279,669	<u>\$115,004</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS BOND FUND CONSTRUCTION - EXPENDABLE TRUST STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED
November 30, 1987

	198	88 *	
	* <u>Budget Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues			
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous	\$444,660 		\$ - 15,517
Total revenues	452,542		15,517
Expenditures - Transportation	261,599		331,519
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	190,943		(316,002)
Fund balance at beginning of year	88,726		404,728
Fund balance at end of year	\$279,669		<u>\$ 88,726</u>

^{*}Budget information not available

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS DRAINAGE DISTRICT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$113,638 53,750	\$107,763 50,702
Taxes (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Accrued interest	77,266 <u>558</u>	50,645 573
Total assets	<u>\$245,212</u>	\$209,683
FUND BALANCE		
Reserved for Drainage District Projects	<u>\$245,212</u>	\$209,683

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS DRAINAGE DISTRICT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

_		1988	*	
	* Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Taxes Miscellaneous		\$ 78,520 		\$ 61,386
Total revenues		90,709		78,498
Expenditures - Maintenance		55,180		50,783
Excess of revenues over expenditures		35,529		27,715
Fund balance at beginning of year		209,683		181,968
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$245,212</u>		<u>\$209,683</u>

^{*}Budget information not available

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS LAW LIBRARY - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Accrued interest Due from other funds	\$30,537 123 	\$28,637 127 401
Total assets	<u>\$31,452</u>	<u>\$29,165</u>
FUND BALANCE		
Reserved for Law Library	\$31,45 <u>2</u>	\$29,165

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS LAW LIBRARY - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988	*	
	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services Miscellaneous		\$ 7,170 3,123		\$ 8,343 1,481
Total revenues		10,293		9,824
Expenditures - General Government				
Books and subscriptions		8,006		7,723
Excess of revenues over expenditures		2,287		2,101
Fund balance at beginning of year		29,165		27,064
Fund balance at end of year		\$31,452		\$29,165

^{*}Budget information not available

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS BOARD OF ELECTION COMMISSIONERS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash	<u>\$5,046</u>	\$6,961
FUND BALANCE		
Reserved for Election	\$5,046	\$6,961

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

BOARD OF ELECTION COMMISSIONERS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

		1988	*	
	* Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental		\$15,453		\$28,068
Expenditures - Election		17,368		22,815
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		(1,915)		5,253
Fund balance at beginning of year		6,961		1,708
Fund balance at end of year		\$ 5,046		<u>\$ 6,961</u>

^{*}Budget information not available

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS WORKING CASH - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Investments, at cost Receivables:	\$290,613	\$292,809
Accrued interest	1,855	1,855
Total assets	<u>\$292,468</u>	<u>\$294,664</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Due to other funds	\$ 3,580	\$ 5,776
<u>Fund balance</u>		
Reserved for Working Cash	288,888	288,888
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$292,468</u>	<u>\$294,664</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS WORKING CASH - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988	*	
	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Miscellaneous		\$ 20,697		\$ 15,427
Other financing uses				
Operating transfers out		(20,697)		(15,427)
Fund balance at beginning of year		288,888		288,888
Fund balance at end of year		\$288,888		\$288,888

^{*}Budget information not available.

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT SUPPORT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Receivables:	\$276,469	\$218,128
Accrued interest Due from other funds	1,134 4,175	952 <u>4,080</u>
Total assets	<u>\$281,778</u>	<u>\$223,160</u>
FUND BALANCE		
Reserved for Court Activities	<u>\$281,778</u>	\$223,160

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT SUPPORT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988		
Powonuog	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$ 50,000 <u>4,500</u>	\$ 55,210 	\$ 5,210 2,880	\$ 56,639 <u>9,736</u>
Total revenues	54,500	62,590	8,090	66,375
Expenditures - Court Related	150,000	3,972	146,028	1,765
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(95,500</u>)	58,618	<u>\$154,118</u>	64,610
Fund balance at beginning of year		223,160		158,550
Fund balance at end of year		\$281,778		\$223,160

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS CHILD SUPPORT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

<u>ASSETS</u>	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
Cash	\$25,981	<u>\$13,690</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Other accrued expenses Due to other funds	\$ 6,361	\$ 5,907 760
Total liabilities	6,361	6,667
Fund balance		
Reserved for Circuit Clerk	19,620	7,023
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$25,981</u>	\$13,690

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS CHILD SUPPORT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

	1988			
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$28,000	\$27,771 	\$ (229) <u>1.752</u>	\$20,103 <u>760</u>
Total revenues	28,000	29,523	1,523	20,863
Expenditures - Circuit Clerk				
Personal services Other charges	13,000 5,000	11,916 5,010	1,084 (10)	13,080
Total expenditures	18,000	<u>16,926</u>	1,074	<u>13,080</u>
Excess of revenues over expenditures	10,000	12,597	2,597	7,783
Other financing uses				
Operating transfers out			-	(760)
Excess of revenues over expenditures and other	\$10,000	12,597	<u>\$2,597</u>	7,023
Fund balance at beginning of year	•	7,023		
Fund balance at end of year		\$19,620		<u>\$ 7,023</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT AUTOMATION - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Receivables:	\$49,326	\$37,258
Accrued interest	211	186
Due from other funds	<u>3,676</u>	1,439
Total assets	<u>\$53,213</u>	<u>\$38,883</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		
Vouchers payable	\$ 46	\$ 110
Fund balance		
Reserved for Court Activities	53,167	38,773
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$53,213</u>	<u>\$38,883</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT AUTOMATION - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED

November 30, 1987

	1988				
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>	
Revenues					
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$25,000	\$25,296 4,689	\$ 296 <u>4,689</u>	\$24,399 1,916	
Total revenues	25,000	29,985	4,985	26,315	
Expenditures - Court Related					
Personal services Supplies Other services and charges Capital outlay	15,000	15,000 43 548	(43) (548)	12,000 883 819 128	
Total expenditures	15,000	<u>15,591</u>	<u>(591</u>)	13,830	
Excess of revenues over expenditures	\$10,000	14,394	\$4,394	12,485	
Fund balance at beginning of yea	r	38,773		26,288	
Fund balance at end of year		\$53,167		\$38,773	

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT SECURITY - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
ASSETS		
Cash Receivables:	\$17,814	\$17,715
Accrued interest Due from other funds	72 3,773	81 3,006
Total assets	<u>\$21,659</u>	<u>\$20,802</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		•
Vouchers payable Other accrued expenses	\$ 1,818 910	\$ - <u>863</u>
Total liabilities	2,728	863
Fund balance		
Reserved for Court Activities	18,931	19,939
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$21,659</u>	<u>\$20,802</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS COURT SECURITY - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

	1988			
	Budget	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$42,000 250	\$42,006 <u>840</u>	\$ 6 590	\$43,749 590
Total revenues	42,250	42,846	596	44,339
Expenditures - Court Related	47,500	43,854	3,646	39,971
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$(5,250</u>)	(1,008)	<u>\$4,242</u>	4,368
Fund balance at beginning of year	ır	19,939		<u>15,571</u>
Fund balance at end of year		<u>\$18,931</u>		<u>\$19,939</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS REGIONAL SUPERINTENDENT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	1987
<u>ASSETS</u>		
Cash Due from other funds	\$27,448 —-	\$32,243 320
Total assets	\$27,448	<u>\$32,563</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE	·	
Liabilities		
Due to other funds	\$ -	\$ 320
Fund balance		
Reserved for Regional Superintendent of Schools	27,448	32,243
Total liabilities and fund balance	<u>\$27,448</u>	<u>\$32,563</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS REGIONAL SUPERINTENDENT - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

		1988	*	
	* <u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous		\$ 1,000 24,617		\$ 1,083 18,307
Total revenues		25,617		19,390
Expenditures - School		52,230		<u>74,293</u>
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures		(26,613)		_(54,903)
Other financing sources (uses)				
Operating transfers in Operating transfers out		21,818		62,466 (4,113) 58,353
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other		(4,795)		3,450
Fund balance at beginning of year		32,243		28,793
Fund balance at end of year		\$ 27,448		\$ 32,243

^{*}Budget information not available

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS RECORDER'S SPECIAL FEE - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET November 30

	<u>1988</u>	<u>1987</u>
ASSETS		
Cash Receivables:	\$15,578	\$17,879
Accrued interest	61	72
Due from other funds	$\frac{2,226}{}$	73 4,312
Total assets	<u>\$17,865</u>	<u>\$22,264</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
<u>Liabilities</u>		
Vouchers payable	\$ -	\$ 5,438
Other accrued expenses Due to other funds	<u>1,361</u>	1,600 1,361
Total liabilities	1,361	8,399
Fund balance		
Reserved for Recorder's Activities	16,504	13,865
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$17,865	\$22,264

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS RECORDER'S SPECIAL FEE - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED November 30, 1987

•		1988		
	<u>Budget</u>	<u>Actual</u>	Variance Favorable (<u>Unfavorable</u>)	1987 <u>Actual</u>
Revenues				
Charges for services Miscellaneous	\$31,000 	\$30,859 707	\$ (141) 607	\$30,106 1,924
Total revenues	31,100	31,566	<u>466</u>	32,030
Expenditures - Other Recorder's				
Personal services Supplies Other services and charges Contractual	200 1,000 28,800	- - - 28,927	200 1,000 (127)	5,148 - 12,294
Total expenditures	30,000	28,927	1,073	17,442
Excess of revenues over expenditures	<u>\$ 1,100</u>	2,639	<u>\$1,539</u>	14,588
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year		13,865		<u>(723</u>)
Fund balance at end of year		\$16,504		<u>\$13,865</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

November 30, 1988 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOVEMBER 30, 198

	Adjustment	Care and	Probation	Payroll	Inheritance	Treasurer's
	Fund	Support	Office	Fund	Ţax	Account
ASSETS						
Cash	\$37,157	\$1,429	\$ 54,528	\$272,345	\$5,593	\$29,363
Investments, at cost	•		50,000			. 1
Receivables:						
Taxes (net of allowance for						
estimated uncollectibles)	•	1	,	•	•	•
Accounts		ı	J	302,096		
Accrued interest	ŧ	ı	844	. ,		334
Inventory	•		•	,		•
Due from other funds	•	•	•	55,585	•	4,602
Total assets	\$37,157	\$1,429	\$105,372	\$630,026	\$5,593	\$34,299
LIABILITIES						
Vouchers payable		ı ₩	, (2	\$ 3,925	· 4	\$ 3,065
Accrued expenses			ŧ	150,296	•	•
Due to other funds	•	,	3,701	250,000	191	28
Due to taxing bodies	•		ŧ	•	•	•
Due to others	37,157	1,429	101,671	225,805	502	31,206
Due to other governments	-	-	,		4,900	A
Total liabilities	\$37,157	\$1,429	\$105,372	\$630,026	\$5,593	\$34,299

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

шш	608	VEMBER 30, 1987
COMBINING BALANCE SE	November 30, 1988	IITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR NOV

	Patient Personal	Periodic Imprisonment	Prisoner's Commissary	County	Circuit Clerk	Regional Superin- tendent
ASSETS Cash	836, 458	\$ 10.381	64 0 1.	741 058	750 0029	8 2 2 2 3
Investments, at cost	•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			190,000	5,938
Taxes (net of allowance for						
estimated uncollectibles)	•	,	t		•	•
Accounts	•	•	•	•	•	
Accrued interest	•	•	•	•	•	108
Inventory	•	•	11,025	•	•	
Due from other funds	•	•		4,556	ı	• :
Total assets	\$34,923	\$10,381	\$22,940	\$34,723	\$492,254	\$39,674
LIABILITIES						
Vouchers payable	: 69	; (A	· «	ı ⇔	:	, 4
Accrued expenses	•	•	•	•	•	•
Due to other funds		329		1	31,982	·
Due to taxing bodies	*			•	•	
Due to others	34,923	10,052	22,940	34,723	453,629	39,674
Due to other governments	•		•	1	6,643	,
Total liabilities	\$34,923	\$10,381	\$22,940	\$34,723	\$492,254	\$39,674

-continued-

		VERMILI FIDUCIARY	VERMILION COUNTY DUCIARY FUNDS -	, ILLIN Agency	O I S FUND S	
		00	COMBINING BALA November 30	BALANCE SHEET r 30, 1988	—	•
	31	WITH COMPARATI	IVE TOTALS	FOR NOVEMBER	MBER 30, 1987	,
				No N		
	County	Deposit	Unknown	Resident	- 1	Totals
0 <u>+</u> ⊞ 0 0 ∀	Collector	Fund	Heirs	Heirs	1988	1987
	42 870 310	780 701	U	, 6	702 200 74	77 27 29
Investments, at					****	*****
	725,595	211,390	21,241	•	1,204,164	1,037,405
Receivables:		•			•	
Taxes (net of allowance						
for estimated						
uncollectibles	828,942	,	•	•	828,942	1,058,781
Accounts	•		•		302,096	•
Accrued interest	3,252	790'7	153	•	8,755	17,398
Inventory	•	4	•		11,025	12,371
Due from other						
funds	42,243	642,092	-	1,996	751,074	647,969
Total assets	\$4,479,342	\$1,237,947	\$21,394	\$1,996	\$7,189,450	\$6,311,498
LIABILITIES						
Vouchers payable	· •	•	· 69	₩	\$ 6,990	\$ 50,767
Accrued expenses	•	•			150,296	106,344
Due to other						
funds	775,606	42,243	17,985	1,032	1,123,097	767,579
Due to taxing						
bodies	3,703,736	,	1		3,703,736	3,528,100
Due to others		1,195,704	3,409	596	2,193,788	1,790,479
Due to govern-						
ments			,	,	11,543	68,229
Total						
liabilities	\$4,479,342	\$1,237,947	\$21,394	\$1,996	\$7,189,450	\$6,311,498

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Balance at November 30, <u>1987</u>	<u>Additions</u>	<u>Deductions</u>	Balance at November 30, 1988
Adjustment Fund				
ASSETS Cash Accrued interest Total assets	\$32,246 149 \$32,395	\$ 8,279 	\$ 3,368	\$ 37,157 <u>\$ 37,157</u>
LIABILITIES Due to other	<u>\$32,395</u>	<u>\$ 8,279</u>	<u>\$ 3,517</u>	<u>\$ 37,157</u>
Care and Support Fund				
ASSETS Cash	<u>\$ 1,564</u>	<u>\$ 708</u>	<u>\$ 843</u>	<u>\$ 1,429</u>
<u>LIABILITIES</u> Due to other funds Due to others Total liabilities	\$ 843 721 \$ 1,564	\$ - <u>708</u> \$ 708	\$ 843 	\$ -
Probation Office Fund				
ASSETS Cash Investments Due from other funds Total assets	\$23,600 50,000 <u>844</u> <u>\$74,444</u>	\$133,306 - - <u>\$133,306</u>	\$102,378 - - \$102,378	\$ 54,528 50,000 <u>844</u> <u>\$105,372</u>
LIABILITIES Due to other funds Due to others Total liabilities	\$ 1,438 <u>73,006</u> <u>\$74,444</u>	\$ 2,263 _131,043 \$133,306	\$ - <u>102,378</u> <u>\$102,378</u>	\$ 3,701 <u>101,671</u> \$105,372

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Balance at November 30, <u>1987</u>	<u>Additions</u>	<u>Deductions</u>	Balance at November 30, 1988
Payroll Clearing Funds				
ASSETS Cash Accounts receivable Accrued interest Due from other funds Total assets	\$247,167 1,101 51,566 \$299,834	\$8,333,983 302,096 - <u>55,585</u> \$8,691,664	\$8,308,805 - 1,101 51,566 \$8,361,472	\$272,345 302,096 - <u>55,585</u> \$630,026
LIABILITIES Vouchers payable Other accrued expense Due to other funds Due to others Total liabilities	\$ 50,767 106,344 12,509 130,214 \$299,834	\$ 3,925 150,296 250,000 8,287,443 \$8,691,664	\$ 50,767 106,344 12,509 8,191,852 \$8,361,472	\$ 3,925 150,296 250,000 225,805 \$630,026
Inheritance Tax Fund				
ASSETS Cash Accrued interest Total assets LIABILITIES Due to other funds Due to others Due to other governments Total liabilities	\$ 22,498	\$ 425,342 \$ 425,342 \$ - 8,974 416,368 \$ 425,342	\$ 442,247	\$ 5,593 \$ 5,593 \$ 191 502 4,900 \$ 5,593
Treasurer's Account		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
ASSETS Cash Accrued interest income Due from other funds Total assets	\$ 21,335 334 - \$ 21,669	\$ 113,352 4,602 - \$ 117,954	\$ 105,324 - \$ 105,324	\$ 29,363 4,602 <u>334</u> <u>\$ 34,299</u>
LIABILITIES Vouchers payable Due to other funds Due to others Total liabilities	\$ - 	\$ 3,065 28 114,861 \$ 117,954	\$ - - 105,324 \$ 105,324	\$ 3,065 28 31,206 \$ 34,299

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Balance at November 30, 1987	<u>Additions</u>	<u>Deductions</u>	Balance at November 30, <u>1988</u>
Circuit Clerk Traffic Fund				
ASSETS Cash	<u>\$51,956</u>	<u>\$</u>	<u>\$51,956</u>	<u>\$ -</u>
LIABILITIES Due to other funds Due to other governments Total liabilities	\$ 28 _51,928 \$51,956	\$ - <u>-</u> \$ -	\$ 28 _51,928 \$51,956	\$ - <u>-</u> <u>\$ -</u>
Metropolitan Enforcement Group	<u>)</u>			
ASSETS Cash Due from other funds Total assets	\$ 805 3,500 \$ 4,305	\$12,380 - \$12,380	\$13,185 3,500 <u>\$16,685</u>	\$ - <u>-</u> <u>\$</u> -
LIABILITIES Due to other governments	<u>\$ 4,305</u>	<u>\$12,380</u>	\$16,685	\$ -
Periodic Imprisonment Fund				
ASSETS Cash	<u>\$ 8,659</u>	<u>\$64,425</u>	<u>\$62,703</u>	<u>\$10,381</u>
<u>LIABILITIES</u> Due to other funds Due to others Total liabilities	\$ 16 <u>8,643</u> \$ 8,659	\$ 313 _64,112 \$64,425	\$ - <u>62,703</u> <u>\$62,703</u>	\$ 329 <u>10,052</u> <u>\$10,381</u>

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Balance at November 30, <u>1987</u>	<u>Additions</u>	<u>Deductions</u>	Balance at November 30 <u>1988</u>
Prisoner's Commissary Fund				
<u>ASSETS</u>				
Cash	\$ 5,771	\$ 58,247	\$ 52,103	\$11,915
Inventory	12.371		1,346	<u>11.025</u>
Total assets	\$18,142	<u>\$ 58,247</u>	\$ 53,449	<u>\$22,940</u>
<u>LIABILITIES</u>				
Due to others	<u>\$18,142</u>	\$ 58,247	\$ 53,449	<u>\$22,940</u>
<u>Vending Machine</u>				
<u>ASSETS</u>				
Cash	<u>\$ 2,954</u>	\$	<u>\$ 2,954</u>	\$
<u>LIABILITIES</u>				·
Due to others	\$ 2,954	\$ -	<u>\$ 2,954</u>	<u>\$ -</u>
Regional Superintendent of Schools Fund				
ASSETS				
Cash	\$32,954	\$31,504,506	\$31,503,832	\$33,628
Investments	5,583	355	· , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	5,938
Accrued interest	108	-		108
Total assets	<u>\$38,645</u>	<u>\$31,504,861</u>	\$31,503,832	\$39,674
<u>LIABILITIES</u>				
Due to others	<u>\$38,645</u>	\$31,504,861	\$31,503,832	<u>\$39,674</u>

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS AGENCY FUNDS MBINING STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN ASSETS AND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Balance at November 30, <u>1987</u>	<u>Additions</u>	<u>Deductions</u>	Balance at November 30, 1988
County Collector Fund				_
<u>ASSETS</u> Cash	\$2,381,609	\$45,635,927	\$45,138,226	\$2,879,310
Investments	720,409	680,491	675,305	725,595
Taxes receivable	1,058,781	828,942	1,058,781	828,942
Accrued interest	11,708	3,252	11,708	3,252
Due from other funds	148,764	42,243	148,764	42,243
Total assets	\$4,321,271	\$47,190,855	\$47,032,784	\$4,479,342
<u>LIABILITIES</u>				
Due to other funds	\$ 560,218	\$ 775,606	\$ 560,218	\$ 775,606
Due to other taxing bodies	3,761,053	46,415,249	46,472,566	3,703,736
Total liabilities	\$4,321,271	\$47,190,855	\$47,032,784	\$4,479,342
Deposit Fund				
<u>ASSETS</u>				•
Cash	\$ 187,021	\$ 521,129	\$ 327,749	\$ 380,401
Investments	196,432	14,958		211,390
Accrued interest	3,328	4,064	3,328	4,064
Due from other funds	<u>437,267</u>	642,092	437,267	642,092
Total assets	\$ 824,048	\$ 1,182,243	\$ 768,344	\$1,237,947
<u>LIABILITIES</u>				
Due to other funds	\$ 148,764	\$ 42,243	\$ 148,764	\$ 42,243
Due to others	675,284	1,140,000	619,580	1,195,704
Total liabilities	\$ 824,048	\$ 1,182,243	\$ 768,344	\$1,237,947
Unknown Heirs Fund				
<u>ASSETS</u>				•
Investments	\$ 19,981	\$ 1,260	\$	\$ 21,241
Accrued interest	153	·	· _	153
Total assets	\$ 20,134	\$ 1,260	\$ -	\$ 21,394
LIABILITIES				
Due to other funds	\$ 16,725	\$ 1,260	\$ -	\$ 17,985
Due to others	3,409		- -	3,409
Total liabilities	<u>\$ 20,134</u>	\$ 1,260	\$ -	<u>\$ 21,394</u>

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year Ended November 30, 1988

	Balance at November 30,	Additiona	Dodustions	Balance at November 30,
	<u>1987</u>	<u>Additions</u>	<u>Deductions</u>	<u>1988</u>
Non-Resident Heirs Fund	,			•
<u>ASSETS</u>				
Cash	\$72,761	\$6,333	\$79,094	\$ -
Accrued interest	326	-	326	-
Due from other funds	<u>1,996</u>			1,996
Total assets	\$75,083	\$6,333	<u>\$79,420</u>	\$1,996
<u>LIABILITIES</u>				
Due to other funds	\$ 325	\$ 707	\$ -	\$1,032
Due to others	<u>74,758</u>	<u>5,626</u>	<u>79,420</u>	<u>964</u>
Total liabilities	<u>\$75,083</u>	<u>\$6,333</u>	<u>\$79,420</u>	\$1,996

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS COUNTY COLLECTOR ASSESSED VALUATION AND TAX EXTENSIONS

	ASSESSED	O VALUATION A	ASSESSED VALUATION AND TAX EXTENSIONS	SIONS		
			1986 Levy	× × ×	1985 Levy	
	Extended in	1988	Extended in	in 1987	Extended in 198	1986
1	\$476,472,	321	\$478,33	4,726	\$477,624,	
County (See below)		13.38%	\$ 4,170,071	13.18%	\$ 3,907,125	12.47%
Townships and Road Districts	3,234,682	9.84	3,088,688	9.76	938	9.38
Cities and villages	3,968,577	12.08	3,880,876	12.27	352	12.30
District schools	17,069,206	51.94	16,542,071	52.28	43	52.46
High school and junior college	2,183,629	6.64	2,155,649	6.81	14	6.84
Sanitary districts	458,889	1.40	242,143	77.	547,350	1.75
Vermilion County Airport Authority	231,987	.71	231,687	.73	230,466	. 74
Fire protection districts	417,790	1.27	391,567	1.24	385,005	1.23
Cemeteries	7,603	.02	7,729	.02	82,654	.26
Vermilion County Conservation Distric	t 68	2.10	786,567	2.49	886'769	2,22
Drainage districts	86,768	.26	2	.32	76,818	.25
Libraries, parks, etc.	118,992	,36	44,478	. 13	40,158	. 10
Totals	\$32,863,054	100.00%	\$31,641,789	100.00%	\$31,332,500	100.00%
		Rate		Rate		Rate
		Per \$100		Per \$100		Per \$100
	Extension	Valuation	Extension	Valuation	Extension	Valuation
General County	\$ 893,195	. 18746 \$	\$ 894,123	.18802 \$	\$ 427,527	00060.
County IMRF	03,83	. 04278	0,13	.10517	425,295	.08953
County Highway	332,625	ο.	230,070	.04838	37,70	500
Social Security	376,747	. 07907	•	•	ŧ	•
County Health	47,647	. 01	46,033	.00968	47,503	.01000
Bridge Fund	238,236	. 05	230,070	.04838	237,515	00
Emergency Service and Disaster Agency	•	•	4	•	10,071	.00212
Audit	•	•			19,096	.00402
Supervisor of Assessments - Office		•	•	•	92,006	.02000
Supervisor of Assessments - card syste			•	•	100,184	.02109
Supervisor of Assessments - tax maps	1	•		•	10,071	.00212
Public Safety Building · rental	1,498,887	. 31458	1,500,350	. 3155	1,300,443	.27376
Elections	•	i	•	•	261,267	.05500
Mental Health Board #708	428,825	60 .	414,106	.08708	475,030	.10000
Nursing Home - bonds and interest 1977	118,8	.02495	65,102	.01369	50,211	.01057
Liability insurance	256,58	2	8	vol	20	.04425
Totals	\$4,395,457	9225	\$4,170,071	8769	\$3,907,125	8225

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Year Ended November 30, 1988

<u>Year</u>	<u>r Ended Nove</u>	<u>ember 30, 1988</u>	
Federal Grantor/	Federal	Pass-Through	
Pass-Through Grantor/	CFDA	Grantor's	1987-1988
Program Title	Number	Number	Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transport Passed through Illinois Department of Transportat		-	
	LIOU		
State and Community			
Highway Safety Program	20.600	DE-7-7092-194	<u>\$ 96,743</u>
U.S. Department of Agriculty Passed through Illinois Department of Public Heal Special Supplemental For	lth ood	88G60721	
and Children	10.557	89G60808	164,446
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Passed through Illinois Department of Public Heal Title XX - Family Plant Social Services Block	Lth		
Grant	13.667	063-48230-4400	-12 39,243
Title XX - Health Suppo Social Services Block Grant	13.667	88G60215 89G60172	7,537
Preventive Health and			
Health Services Block		990(0(()	
Grant	13 001	88G60662	10.00
Granc	13.991	89G60712	10,305
Maternal and Child Heal Services Block Grant	th 13.994	872-48230- 4400-1688	4,218
`		1.00 1000	4,210
Teen Pregnancy Prevention Grant	13.994	88G60908	16,788
Parents to Soon Prenata Grant Maternal and Chil Health Services Block		0.00(0171	00.075
	12 00/	88G60171	23,075
Grant	13.994	89G60145	-
D2 1			
Diabetes Health Service	_	88G60650	
Block Grant	13.988	89G60660	2,144
Title X - Health Suppor Social Services Block Grant	t 13.217	063-4830-	
•	13.21	4400-11-00	50 60%
		4400-TT-00	59,624

-continued-

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE Year Ended November 30, 1988

	er Ended Novem		
Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantor/	Federal	Pass-Through	****
	CFDA	Grantor's	1987-1988
Program Title	Number	<u>Number</u>	<u>Expenditures</u>
U.S. Department of Health a <u>Human Services</u> East Central Illinois Are			
Agency on Aging, Inc.			
Case Management	13.633	88-B-08	
		89-B-08	1,148
Illinois Department of Public Aid			
Medical Assistance Prog		37	
(Medicaid) (Title XIX)	13./14	Not available	<u>24,953</u>
Total Department of He Human Services	alth and		_189,035
U.S. Department of Justice Passed through Illinois Criminal Justice Informa Authority Vermilion County			
Victim Coordinator	Other Federal		
Service	Assistance	Not available	21,270
Multi-Jurisdictional			
Narcotic Units Grant	16.579	Not available	18,000
Total Department of Ju	stice		39,270
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Passed through Illinois Department of Commerce and Community Affairs			
Emergency Shelter	14.231	87-27105	19,205
Total Federal Assistan	ce		\$508,699

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS



Vermilion County Board Danville, Illinois

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Vermilion County, Illinois as of November 30, 1988 and for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated May 12, 1989. Our audit of such general purpose financial statements was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in the Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities, and Functions, issued by the U.S. General Accounting Office; the Single Audit Act of 1984, and the provisions of OMB Circular A-128, and Audits of State and Local Governments, and accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The management of Vermilion County, Illinois is responsible for the County's compliance with laws and regulations. In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records that included, but were not limited to, transactions and records relating to certain non-major federal financial assistance programs. The purpose of our testing was to obtain reasonable assurance that Vermilion County, Illinois, had, in all material respects, complied with laws and regulations noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the general purpose financial statements of the County and executed the tested non-major program transactions, in compliance with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which we believe could have a material effect on the allowability of program expenditures.

The results of our tests indicate that for the transactions and records tested Vermilion County, Illinois, complied with those laws and regulations referred to above. Our testing was more limited than would be necessary to express an opinion on whether Vermilion County, Illinois administered the non-major federal financial assistance programs in compliance, in all material respects, with those laws and regulations for which noncompliance could have a material effect on the allowability of program expenditures. With respect to the transactions and records that were not tested by us, nothing came to our attention to indicate that Vermilion County, Illinois had not complied with laws and regulations other than those laws and regulations for which we noted violations in our testing referred to above.

Clifton, Seinduson & Co.

Danville, Illinois May 12, 1989 MEMBERS OF NR INTERNATIONAL A Worldwide Association of Independent Accounting Firms COMBINED REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS (ACCOUNTING AND ADMINISTRATIVE)



Vermilion County Board Danville, Illinois

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Vermilion County, Illinois as of November 30, 1988 and for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated May 12, 1989. As a part of our audit, we made a study and evaluation of the internal accounting control and the applicable internal controls systems used in administering federal financial assistance programs of Vermilion County, Illinois, to the extent we considered necessary to evaluate the systems as required by generally accepted auditing standards, the standards for financial and compliance audits contained in the Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities, and Functions, issued by the U.S. General Accounting Office, the Single Audit Act of 1984, and the provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments.

The management of Vermilion County, Illinois is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control systems, including those used in administering federal financial assistance programs. In fulfilling that responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of control procedures. The objectives of internal control systems are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and with respect to federal financial assistance programs: that resource use is consistent with laws, regulations, and policies; resources are safeguarded against waste, loss and misuse; transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and reliable data are obtained, and maintained to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the preparation of Federal reports in accordance with Federal requirements. Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting and administrative controls, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the systems to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the procedures may deteriorate.

The significant internal accounting and administrative control categories and the extent of our study and evaluation of these categories, are as follows:

- Control categories for which our study was extended beyond the preliminary review.
 - Payroll disbursements

MEMBERS OF NR INTERNATIONAL A Worldwide Association of Independent Accounting Firms

- Control categories for which our study was limited to a preliminary review.
 - Financing
 - Receipts
 - Other disbursements
 - External financial reporting

With respect to internal control systems for which our study was extended beyond the preliminary review phase, our study and evaluation included considering the types of errors and irregularities that could occur, determining the internal control procedures that should prevent or detect such errors and irregularities, determining whether necessary procedures are prescribed and are being followed satisfactorily, and evaluating any weaknesses. Such study and evaluation included the significant internal accounting and administrative controls used in administering the following non-major Federal financial assistance programs; State and Community Highway Safety Program and Special Supplemental Food Program for Women. During the year ended November 30, 1988, Vermilion County, Illinois expended 51 percent of its Federal financial assistance under these non-major programs.

With respect to the internal control systems for which our study and audit was limited to a preliminary review, we merely obtained an understanding of the control environment and the flow of transactions through the accounting system. Accordingly, our audit would not necessarily disclose all material weaknesses in these systems.

Our study and evaluations described in the two preceding paragraphs were more limited than would be necessary to express an opinion on the internal accounting control of Vermilion County, Illinois. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole or on the internal control systems used in administering the federal financial assistance programs of Vermilion County, Illinois. Further, we do not express an opinion on the internal control systems used in administering the non-major federal financial assistance programs of Vermilion County, Illinois or any of the control categories identified above.

However, our study and evaluation and our audit disclosed the following conditions that we believe result in more than a relatively low risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements or to a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be detected within a timely period.

The County does not have pre-numbered purchase orders.

There is no record of open purchase orders.

There are no receiving reports issued to acknowledge receipt of items purchased.

There is inadequate segregation of duties among personnel involved in the accounting function, but management believes corrective action is not practicable in the circumstances. These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of the audit tests to be applied in (1) our audit of the 1988 general purpose financial statements and (2) our audit and review of the County's compliance with laws and regulations noncompliance with which we believe could have a material effect on the allowability of program expenditures for each non-major federal financial assistance programs. This report does not affect our reports on the general purpose financial statements and on the County's compliance with laws and regulations dated May 12, 1989.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and, all applicable Federal agencies, and those other governments from which Federal financial assistance was received and should not be used for any other purpose. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report which upon acceptance by Vermilion County, Illinois, is a matter of public record.

Alifton, bundusm Co.

Danville, Illinois May 12, 1989 VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT REPORT

November 30, 1988



Vermilion County Board Danville, Illinois

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Vermilion County, Illinois for the year ended November 30, 1988. As part of our audit, we have the following comments to management for improvements in the system or in operations.

FINDING 1: PAYMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS WITHOUT COUNTY BOARD APPROVAL

During our audit we noted that the County Board is approving claims after the payment has been made to the vendors. This is considered a material weakness in the internal control system of the County and appears to be in violation of State statutes.

Recommendation: Management of Vermilion County should establish procedures to insure that the County Board approves all claims prior to disbursement. This could be accomplished by maintaining the current payable cycle with unsigned checks being held until County Board approval of the payment of the related invoices.

FINDING 2: RECONCILIATION OF BANK ACCOUNTS

During our audit we discovered two bank accounts were not reconciled to the computer records. The process of reconciliation will ensure that all cash activity of the County is recorded.

Recommendation: We recommend all bank accounts be reconciled with computer records on a timely basis.

FINDING 3: LACK OF SEGREGATION OF DUTIES IN CONNECTION WITH THE RECONCILIATION OF BANK ACCOUNTS AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS

We noted that there is a lack of segregation of duties in the receiving, depositing, recording, and reconciling of the revenues for all County funds. The process of segregation of duties will ensure that a check and balance is performed on revenues when received.

MEMBERS OF NR INTERNATIONAL A Worldwide Association of Independent Accounting Firms Recommendation: Based on current staffing requirements, an adequate segregation of duties could be accomplished by moving the reconciliation of bank accounts and proof of cash out of the Treasurer's office and into the Auditor's office. Also, any County personnel who receive funds should not deposit the funds in the bank account. The person receiving the funds should write the receipt, reconcile the cash drawer at the end of the day and enter the receipt into the accounting system. The person making the deposit should not have the ability to collect funds, write receipts, or enter the receipt into the accounting system.

FINDING 4: MISSING MONTHLY ACCOUNT ACTIVITY ON THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL RECORDS

During our audit we noted several funds where the computer records were missing monthly account activity. We also noted several funds are still not included in the computer accounting system.

As the computer generated general ledger is the official accounting record of the County, it is imperative all funds and all fund activity be recorded correctly on the computer system.

Recommendation: The management of Vermilion County should establish all funds on the computerized accounting system.

FINDING 5: CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT FUNDS DEPOSITED IN WRONG FUND

Our audit discovered that a certificate of deposit for the General Fund was deposited in the Public Safety Building Fund on November 2, 1988. This was not corrected until after the year end.

Recommendation: We recommend the certificate of deposit indicate fund designation on the face of the certificate, and that reasonable care be taken in the recording and depositing of funds.

FINDING 6: BANK ACCOUNTS AND CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS NOT IN THE NAME OF VERMILION COUNTY

We noted several bank accounts and certificates of deposit without the name of Vermilion County, Illinois on the face of the account.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County Board establish procedures to ensure that the name of Vermilion County, Illinois appears in the first line of all bank accounts and certificates of deposit.

FINDING 7: NON-BUDGETARY FUNDS

As noted in the financial statements, several funds are not under the County's budgetary control system.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County insure that all funds are subject to the budgetary control system of the County.

FINDING 8: EDP INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW FINDINGS

We noted several findings in the EDP department. These are not findings in the performance of the department, but in the adequate protection of the EDP hardware and County's financial information. The following is a list of findings which the County should resolve:

- A. The computer room does not contain controlled access doors on all entrances and exits into the computer room.
- B. Adequate fire protection does not exist for the hardware.
- C. The computer system has no uninterruptable power supply connected to the hardware. This means a loss of power could lead to loss or corruption of all financial and other data stored on the computer system.
- D. There is no offsite storage data and program backup files.
- E. Accounting software has not been upgraded to a current version.

Recommendation: We recommend that serious consideration be given to correction of these inadequacies in the EDP department, and that the accounting software be upgraded when a new release is provided.

FINDING 9: ECONOMIC INTEREST STATEMENTS NOT ON FILE

Three statements of economic interest were not on file at the County Clerk's office, as required by State statute.

Recommendation: We recommend that the financial resource manager distribute and collect economic interest statements once a year from those County employees required to file and that the financial resource manager submit all economic interest statements to the County Clerk in a timely manner in accordance with State statutes.

We would like to commend the County staff on their continued improvement in the accounting system. We noted improvement in several key areas and express our appreciation for the staff's assistance during the audit.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and should not be used for any other purpose.

Danville, Illinois May 12, 1989

Clifton,

Clifton, Sundam + Co.



FINANCIAL RESOURCES DIRECTOR

6 NORTH VERMILION • DANVILLE, ILLINOIS 61832 (217) 431–2553

TO: All Departments

FROM: Lori A. Campbell, Financial Resources Director

DATE: December 22, 1989

SUBJECT: 1989-1990 Fiscal Year

Copies of the budget were printed for each office, however, several line items will not be correct in the budget. While setting up the data entry for the new version of the accounting software major problems were found in the Chart of Accounts and Elements File. Therefore, line items may have been changed and will not correspond with the budget books. I have attached a list of changes that have not been changed in the budget books. Please make the corrections in your copy of the budget.

Line items for expenditures for most departments are not the same as in the previous years. Be sure to check the budget for your correct line item numbers. If you have a question about your new numbers please give me a call.

The structure of the appropriation numbers has also changed. In the recent past we used a three tier system, starting with the new fiscal year we have a four tier system.

Example:

Fiscal Year 1988-1989 01-110-4101 Fiscal Year 1989-1990 001.110.00.04101

The first level is now three digits. Add a zero before your fund number. Example: fund 01 becomes fund 001

The second level has three digits and is your department number. This has not changed.

The third level has two digits. The only department that will use this is the Treasurer's office. The purpose is to identify the correct cash account within the County Collectors fund. All departments should type two zeros in this place but the Treasurer's office.

The fourth level is now tive digits. Add a zero before you line item number.

Example: 4101 becomes 04101

BE SURE TO NOTE THAT INSTEAD OF DASHES BEING USED TO SEPARATE EACH LEVEL A DECIMAL POINT IS USED.

Purchase orders that do not follow the new format will be returned to the respective office

Purchase orders and numbers can be received from the auditor. The new purchase orders have three parts. The white copy will go to the auditor the yellow copy for your office records and the pink copy to the vendor upon making the order. Purchase orders and invoices will be sent to the Auditor. The documentation will be forward to MIS for data entry. After data entry is complete the documentation will be returned to the Auditor. The Treasurer's office will print and distribute the checks. We do not know at this time if payables will be ready for pickup each thursday after 9:00 A.M. as they have in the past. The Treasurer's office will notify everyone after they have time to analyze the situation.

NOTE there will NOT BE ANY PAYABLES for the NEW (1989-1990) fiscal year until January. This is due to the new version of the accounting software being installed. If you have an invoice that needs to be paid before that date a manual check can be requested from the Ireasurer. DO NOT request manual checks unless it is absolutely necessary!



FINANCIAL RESOURCES DIRECTOR

6 NORTH VERMILION • DANVILLE, ILLINOIS 61832 (217) 431–2553

TO: Members of the Finance Committee

FROM: Lori A. Campbell, Financial Resource Director (AC)

DATE: September 25, 1989

SUBJECT: 1987-1988 Management Report Rebuttal

The County Board Chairman, County Auditor and myself sat down and discussed the Management Report. We have come up with the following conclusions:

Finding 1. Payment of Appropriations Without County Board Approval

We recommend that the County Board delegate the authority of approving the bills to the County Auditor. Clifton-Gunderson made a recommendation to continue our payables but hold the checks and mail them once a month. We believe the following would happen if the County took Clifton-Gunderson's adivce:

1. The County could lose discounts for paying in a timely manner.

2. The County could incur late penalties.

3. Checks could be lost, misplaced or stolen.

4. The accounting reports would not accurately reflect the actual account activity.

Finding 2. Reconciliation of Bank Accounts

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson that ALL bank accounts should be reconciled with the computer records on a timely basis.

Finding 3. Lack of Segregation of Duties in Connection with the Reconciliation of Bank Accounts and Deposit of Funds

marinde

). D. to white perolect

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson that the reconciliation of bank accounts and proof of cash be moved to the Auditor's office.

Finding 4. Missing Monthly Account Activity on the County's Financial Records

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson that all funds should be on the computerized accounting system and that the Finance Committee should meet with the Treasurer and discuss the problem.

Finding 5. Certificate of Deposit Funds Deposited in Wrong Fund

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson that all certificates of deposit should indicate the fund designation on the face of the certificate and that reasonable care should be taken in recording and depositing of funds.

Finding 6. Bank Accounts and Certificate of Deposits not in the Name of Vermilion County

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson that all bank accounts and certificates of deposit should bear Vermilion County, Illinois on the first line. The Finance Committee should send a letter to all departments notifying them of this request.

Finding 7. Non-Budgetary Funds

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson that all County funds should be under the budgetary controls of the County.

Finding 8. EDP Internal Control Review Findings

We agree with Clifton-Gunderson and believe the Finance and Property Committees should take steps to rectify the situation.

Finding 9. Economic Interest Statements not on File

We agree that there should be a person who checks the economic interest statements, however, we feel that the Auditor should perform this task.

County Clerk

J B. Var